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Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Members of ADIS ENTERPIRSES PRIVATE LIMITED
Report ¢n the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have andited the accompanying financial statements of ADIS ENTERPIRSES PRIVATE LIMITED (“the Company™), which comprise the
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022, Statement of Profit and Loss {including Cther Comprehensive Income), Statement of Changes in Equity and
Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended on that date, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of the significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information (hereinafier refermed to as “the financial staterents™).

In our opinion and io the best of our information and according to the explanations géiven to us, the aforesaid financial statements give the
information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”}in the manner so required and give & trve and fair view ia coenformity with the
Indian  Accounting $tandards prescribed under section 33 of the Aet read with the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as
amended, (“Ind AS™} and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2022, its

peofit, total comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the vear ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Anditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10} of the Act.
Our respemsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of
aur report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Cade of Ethics issned by the Institute of Chartered Accountamis of Indig
{ICAT) together with the independence requirements that are relevant te our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the
Ruies there under, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these tequirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe
that 1he aadit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Other Information .
The Company’s management and Board of Directors are tesponsible for preparation of the other information. The other information comprises 1he

information included in the Director’s report, but does not include the financiat statements and our auditors’ report thereson.
Our opinion on the financial statzments does not cover the other information and we do 1ot express any form of assurance conclusion thereon,

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing 90, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obfained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materally
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. :

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s management and Board of Directers are respomsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect 1o the preparation of

these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the state of affairs, profits, total comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of
the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance

of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safepuanding the assets of the Cotipany and for preventing and

detecting frauds and other iregularities; selection and spplication of appropriate accounting policies, making judgments and estimates that are
reascnable and prudent; and design, impiementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for

ensuring the accuracy anx completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a -
true and fair view and are free from matedal misstatement, whether due 1o fraud or error. '

Ton preparing the {financial statemants, management and Board of Directors are responsible Tor ussessing the Company's ability to continve as 2 going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related 10 going concern and using the going concern basis of agcounting unless management either intends to
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alfernative but to do 0.

The Board of Directors is als responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporiing provess.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements .
‘Our objectives are to obiain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as 2 whole are free frofm material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is nota guarantee thaf an

 audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists, Misstatements can arise from frand or etror and are

considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected 10 influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these Gnancial statements.

As part of an audit in acoordance with $As, we cxercise professional judgment aal maintyin professionat skepticism theoughout the audit, We alsa:

*  ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Fpancial stafements, whether due to fraud or ermor, design and perform auodit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide & besis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher tham for one resulting from erzor, as fraud may involve collesion, forgery,

intentional omissions, misrepresentations, ot the override of internal corrol.

I



*  Obtain an understanding of intemal financial controls relevant o the andit in order to desipn audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances. Under section 143(3Xi) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate
internal financial controls system in place and the aperating effectiveness of such controls.

»  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting pohcles uzed and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and refated disclosures made by
management.

*  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s nse of the going concem basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related 10 events or conditions that may cast sigrificant doubt on the Company’s ahility to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that & material uncertainty cxists, we are required to draw atiention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the: financial statemnents or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to madify our opinion. Our conclusions are hased on fhe andit evidence obtainad
up ta ihe date of our auditor’s repott. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concem.

*  Evaluste the overal? presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Standafone Financial Statements that, individuaily or in aggregate, makes it probable that the
economic deisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the Standalone Financial Statements may be influenced. We considar quantitative materiality
and gualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii} 1o evaluate the effect of any
identified misstatements in the Standalone Financial Statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regardmg, amang other mattees, the planned scope and timing of the audit and 51gmf cant andit
findings, including any significamt deficiencies in internal control that we 1dent|fy during our audit.

We also provide those charged with povemnance with a statement that we bave complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, anid
to commumicnte with them ell relationships and other matters that inay reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safepuards

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
standalone finencial smtements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matiers, We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law
or regulation precludes public disclosur: about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our repert becase the adverse consequences of deing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Reguirements
L. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:
@)  We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledpe and balief were necessary for the
" purposes of our andit. .

b)  In oor opinion, proper baoks of account as required by law have been kept by the Company s¢ far as it appears from our examination of
those books.

¢} The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, Statement of Changes in Equity and the
Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this Report are in agreament with the books of account.

d}  In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Tnd AS specified under section 133 of the Act, read with relevant rules
igsued theretnder.

€)  On the basis of the written rapresentations received from the directors as on March 31, 2022 taken on record by the Board of Dirsetoss,
none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2022 fiom being appointed as & dirsetor in terms of Section 154 (2) of the Act.

f}  With respect to the sdequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and the operating effectivencss of
such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure A”, Qur report expresses an unmodified opimion on the adequacy and operating
effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls over financial repontisg.

£} With respect to the other matters 1o be included ir the Auditor’s Keport in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companizs (Audit and Audltors)
Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given 1o us:

*  The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financtal position i notes (e the financial statemeitts:
* The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivatives contracis for which there were any material foreseeable
losses;
. ®  There were no amount to be transferred by the Company to the Investor Education and Protection Fund,

2. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Crder™) jssued by the Central Government in terms of Section H43(E) of
the Act, we ive in “Anncxnre B" a statement on the mutlers specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

For Mohesh P. & Co,

Chartered Awountants 7/@

" Mace: Muuibai
" -Date: April 29,2022




ANNEXTRE “A" T{ THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS® REFORT
(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under ‘Report on nher Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report to the Members of ADIS
ENTERPIRSES PRIVATE LIMITED as of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-seetion 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act,
2013 (“the Aet™)

Opivion
We have audiled the intemal finencial controls over finaneial reparting of ADIS ENTERPIRSES PRIVATE LIMITED (“the Company™) as of
March 31, 2022 in conjunction with out audit of the Ind AS financisl statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

In our cpinien, 1o the best of cur infermation and according to the explanations given to us, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such intermal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at
March 31, 2022, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Interal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered

Accountants of India,

Management’s Respansibility for Internz] Financial Controls

The Board of Directors of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintining intemnal firancial controls based on the internal control over
financial reporting criteria established by the Company consideting the essential componenis of internal control stated in the Guidarce Note en Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuting the orderly and efficient
conduct of its business, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuraey and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013, :

Auditors’ Responsibility .
Onur respensibility is to express an opinion on the intaral financial controls over financial reporting of the Company based on our audit, We conducted
our audit in accordance with the Guidance Mote on Audit of Intemal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”} isswed by the
Institute of Chertered Aceountants of India and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assirance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and
maintained and if such cpnirols operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the intemal financial controls system over financial reporting
and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of intemal financial conirols over financial reporting included obtainitg en wnderstanding of internal
financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of intemal control based on the assessed risk, The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatemnent of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or etror. '

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sofficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal
financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financlal Controls Over Financial Reparting

A company’s intemal financial control over fingncial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assucance reganding the eliability of

financial reporting and the preparation of financial statemenis for external purposes in accordance with generally accepied accounting principles. A

company’s internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that

(1) Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transastions and dispositions of the assets of the
Company,

(2} provide reasonable assurance that transactions arz recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in sccordance with generaliy
accepted accounting principles, and that receipis and expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with authorisations.of
management and directors of the Company; and

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, ov disposition of the Company's assets that
could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting ’ :

Because of the inherent limitations of intemal financial controls ever financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper management
override of controls, material misstatemens due to error or fraud may oceur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the inteenal
financial controls aver financial reporting to futere periods are subject to the risk that the internal financiad comrel over financial reporting may become
inadequate becanse of changes in conditions, or thet the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriovate. e

 For Mahesh P. & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Mah 0
ropricior)
Membership No. 032698

UPIN:

Place: Mumbai
 Date: Aprll 25, 2022




ANNEXERE ‘R TO THE INDEPENDENT AUBITOR'S REFORT

The Annexure teferred to in paragraph 2 under Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements of the Independent Auditors®
Report to the members of ADIS ENTERPRISES LIMITED on the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022, we

report that
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The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and
situation of Property, Plant and Equiptnent.

The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

The Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its Praperty, Plant and Equipment by which
all Property, Plant and Equipment ave verified in 2 phased manner at reasonable interval. Tn our opinioz, this
periodicity of physical verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its
Property, Plant and Equipment. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us,
the discrepancies noticed on physical verification of fixed assets as compared to book records were nol
material and have been properly dealt with in the books of account,

The Company does not have any immovable propesty {other than properties where the company is the legsee
and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee). Accordingly, clause 3 (i) {c) of the Order
is not applivablis,

According to the information and explanations given ta us and on the basis of our examination of the records
of the Company, the Company has nol revaleed its Properly, Plunt and Eguipment {including Right of Use
assers) or infangible assets or both during the year.

According fo information and explanations given to us and on the basis of cur examination of the records of
the Company, there are no proceedings initiated or pending against the Company for helding amy benami
property undet the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.

The invenloty bas been physically verified by the management during the year at repular insetvals. Tn our
opinion, the frequency of such verification is reasonable and procedures and coverage as followed by
management were appropriate. No discrepancies were noficed on verification between the physical stocks and
the book records that were more than 10% in the aggregate of ach class of inventory,

According 10 the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records
of the Company, the Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits during any point of time of the
year in excess of five crore rupees, in aggregate, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of
current asseds and Lience reposting undes clase 3000y ol the Owdes [y not upplicuble

Acoording to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records
of the Company, the Company has not made investnents in, provided any guarantee, security or granted loan
or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured to companies, fiums, limited liability partmership or
any other parifes during the year and heace clause 3(fii)a-¢) of the Order is not applicable.

In our opinion and according 1o the information and explanations given to us, there are no loans, investments,
guarantees and securities given in respect of which provisions of section 186 of the Act are applicable.
Further, there are no loans, guarantees and securities given in fespect to which the pravisiens of Section 185,
of the Act are applicabls.

The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits from the public.
Accordingly, clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

The Central Government of India has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under section 148(1) of
the Act, for any of the ecrvices rondored by the Company, Accordingly, paragroph 3(vi} of the Order is not
applicable 1o the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records
of the Company, amounts deducted / accrued in the books of account in respect of undisputed stamrary dues

" including provident fund, employees” state insurance, income tax, goods and service tax and other material

statutory dues have generally been repulary deposited during {he year by the Company with the appropriate
authorities. As explained to us, the Company did not have any dues on account of service tax, value added ax,
sules tax, duty of customs, duty of Excise and Cess.

There were no sutstanding duee ( ax mentioned above) as at 315t March 2022 for o period of more than six
months from the date they became payable.

There were no does of Income-tax and service tax, which have not been deposited as on 31st March, 2022 on
account of dspute, )
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According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records
of the Company, the Company has not surendered or disclesed any transactions, previously unrecorded as
imcome i the books of acconnt, in the tax assessments andet the Income Tax Act, 196] as income during the
year.

According to the information and explanations given to 1s and on the basis of our examination of the records
of the Company, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans er borrowings or in the payment of
interest therzon to banks during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records
of the Company, the Company has not been declared a wilful defaulter by any bank or financéal institution or
governmend or government authority.

There was no 4erm loan availed by the company hence point 3(ix)c) not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the balance sheet
of the company, we report that no funds raised on short-ierm basis have bean used for long-term purposes by
the company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the Fngncia)
statements of the company, we report that the company has not taken any finds from any entity or person on
account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates and joimt ventures as defined under
Companies Act, 2013,

Accarding to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performexd by us, we report that the
company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries, associates and
Join ventures as defined under Companies Act, 2013,

The Company did not raise any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer {including debt
instruments) and term loans during the year, Thus, paragraph 3 (x){(2) of the Order is not applicable to the

~ Company,

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records
of the Company, the Company has not made sny preferentisl aliotment or private placement of shares or
convertible debentures (fully or partially or optionally convertible) during the year. Thus, paragraph 3 (xXb)
of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

Based on examination of the bocks and records of the Company and according to the tnformation and
explanations given to us, no material frand by the Company or on the Company has been noticed or reported
during the course of the audit.

Arcording to the information and explanations given 1o us, no report under sub-section (12) of Section 143 of
the Companies Act, 2013 has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule (3 of
Companies (Audii and Auditers) Rules, 2014 with the Ceniral Government.

Based on the information and explanations provided to us, the Company is not required to have a vigil
mechanism as per Companies Act, 2013,

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi
company. Accordingly, parageaph 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, and based on our examination of the Tecords of the
Coropany, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Act where
applicable, and the details of such transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as requined by
the applicable accounting standards.

The Compaty does not require to have internal andit systems and hence clause 3(xdv) of the Order is not
applicable

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to vs, the Company has not entered
nto any non-cash fransactions with its directors or persons connected to its directors and hence, provisions of
Section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable 1o the Company.

According to the information and explanations given te us, the Company is not required to be registered under
section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act 1934, Accordingdy, clause 3(xvi)(a-c} of the Order is not
applicable.”

Ageording to the information and explanations provided to us dusing the course of awdit, there is no core
investment company within the Group {as defined in the Core Investment Companics (Reserve Bank)
Birections, 2016) and accardingly reporting under clanse 3(ovi)(d) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company has not incuered cash losses in the current financial year and in the immediately preceding
financial year.
There has been no resignation of the statutory aoditors during the year. Accordingly, clanse 3(xviii) of the

" (rder is not applicable.
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For Mahesh P. & Co.
Charfered Accountants

e

(2

UDIN:

Place;
Date:

embership No. 032698

According 1o the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and
expected dates of realisation of fiancial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information
accompanyiog the financial stalements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans, we
are of gpinion that no material uncertzinty exists as on the date of the audit repor! regarding whether the
Company is capable of meeting its Liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due
within a period of one year from the balance sheet date,

The Company is not required to spend amount towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR} as per the
requirements of Section 135 of the Act. Accordingly, reporiing under clause 3{xx){(a-bv) of the Order is not
applicable.

Mumbai
April 29, 2022




' ADIS Enterpr lebPrwate Limited

Allin INR thausands except share dota

Balance Sheet____ _

Particulars Note No. | As at March 31, 2022 | As at March 31, 2021
A |ASSETS
Non. - currenfassets... . . . e
Property. plant and equipment - -
Financial assets - -
Deferred tax assets {net) 3 1,904 1,940
Income tax assets (net) 3 1,789 1,330 |
Total non — current assefs 3.693 3,450
Current assets
- Inventaries 7 79 -
Financial assets
{i) Trade receivables 8 5,304 7,497
_ {it) Cash and cash equivaients 9 4,008 t31
(il Other current (inancial assets 4 3,610 2,783
Other current assets & 142 91
Total current assets 13,339 10,502
Total asscts 17,032 13,991
B |EQUITY AND LIARILITIES
Equity .
Equity share capital . 10 130 100
Other equity 11 8,562 6,970
Total equnity ’ 8,662 7070
Liabilities
- Noa — current liabilities
Financial liabilities - -
Provisions . 16 © 1,269 436
. Total non-current liabilities 1,269 436
Current liahilities
Financial liabilities
{i) Trade payables
(2} Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small (2 7 31
enlerprises
(b) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro 12 ) 9 880
enterprises and small enterprises :
| : (i) Other current financial tiabilities . 13 4 821 3 866
’ Other current liabilities . 135 B SR | 1,152
Provisions 16 660 557
Total current liabilities T,101 6,486
Toetal liabilitics - 8,376 §‘922
Total equity and liabilities 17,032 13,992

The accvinpanying votes fotn an intereal par of tese Muancial statements.

As per our repart of even dare ) ' /_‘\
For Mahesh P. & Co. For and on bebatfof the Board of Directors

Chartered Accountanrs P/&’ - : P

é;ih P. Ladwa

- (Proprictor
) hip Mo. 032698

g Bikash Mishra
Director ' Director
(DIN: Q7833560 {DIN: OFR00700)

Place: New Delhi
Date: April 29, 2022

MEMBERSHIP NO.
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ADIS Enterprises Private Lzmlted

Al in INR thausands except s.‘mre dorta

Statement of Proﬁt and Loss

. S No [Particnlars Note N, Year cnded
March 31,2022 March 31, 2021
Income
1 a) Revenue from operations 17 47,794 39,651
b) Other income i8 113 -
" |Total Income (a + b 47,907 39,651
Expenses ]
a) Cost of materials consumed 19 - 208
b) Purchases of inventory ] 20 193 -
2 ¢) Changes in inventories of inventory 20 (79) -
d) Employee benefits expense 21 40,502 32,813
e) Finance costs 22 33 189
f)  Other cxpenses 23 5,063 5,061
- Total expenses (a+b+e+d+e +f) 45,712 39,1711
3 _|Profit before tax and exceptional items (-2} ' 2,195 : 480
4 |Exceptional items - -
) - 5 [Profit before tax (3+4) 2,195 480
- 6 {Tax expense )
: a) Cwrrent tax |3 21 -
: b)  Deferred tax ' 5 176 105
.'; Total tax expesse 197 103
: 7 {Profit for the year (5-6) 1,998 378
8 |Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss:
a) Re-measurement of defined benefits plan 21 . (356) (216)
b)  Income tax relating to these items 3 140 : 230
Other comprehensive income / (loss) for the year {net of taxes) ' {416) (686)
9 |Total comprehensive income for the yesr (7+8) 1,582 {311}
. 10 |Earnings per shars (EPS) {face value INR 10 per share} 24
{a}  Basic (INR) 199.80 37.50
{b) Diluted (INR) 199.80 37.50
- i Weighted average equity shares used in computing earnings per equity share )
{a) Basic (Nos.) . £0,000 10,000
(b} Diluted (Nos.) ’ . 10,008 10,000

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

As per our reporl ol'even date /\

For Mahesh F. & Co. ¥or aad on hehalf of the Board of Directors

Chartered Accountants )
M M = 7

Bilcosh ®lishro
(Propri i Director
Membership No. 032698 [DIH: 07833562) (DIN: 07300700)

. Place: New Delhi
Date: April 29, 2022

- % . 32608 _
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Allin fNR rbousands except share dota

Statement of Changes in Equity

A.  Eqguity Share Capital

Particulars Amounts
As at April 1, 2020 108
Increase/(decrease) during the year -
As at March 31, 2021 100
Increased(decrease) during the year -
As at March 31, 2022 1a0

B. Other Equity

Year ended March 31, 2821
Pastienlars Reserves and surplas Fqu::;fll:';:‘;sbeur::; - Total otiier
Retained earnings parent equity
As at April 1, 2024 7,27 - 7271
Profit / (loss) for the year 375 - 375
Cther comprehensive income / (loss) (686) . (686)
Tatal comprehensive income for the year {311) - (311)
Changes during the year - 10 10
As at Maxch 31, 2021 6,960 10 6,970
" Year cnded Mareh 31, 2022
oarticatars Reserves and surplus Fqui(:;l:;::':;e“r;i = Total lfther
Retained earnings parent cquity
As at April 1, 2021 6,960 10 5,970
Profit / (loss) for the year 1,998 - 1,998
Other comprehensive income / (loss) {416) - (416)
['infal compreliensive income for the year 1,582 - 1,782
Changes during the year - 10 i
As at March 31, 2022 8,542 20 8,562

The accompanying notes form an integral part af these financial statements.

As per our report of even date

N

ishra

" For Mahesh P. & Co,
- Chancrchecountants

_ Mahesh
: Tictor)

Memhershlp No. 032698

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Bikash
Director
(DIN: 07900700}

“(DIN: 07833562)

Place: New Delai
Date: April 29, 2022
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Statement of Cash Flows
: - |§ NeParticulars Year ended
. March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
A, {CASH FLOWS FROM QPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax 2,195 480
’-: : Adjusted for; _
g : Finance costs - 33 189
' Interest income (13| - -
Allowance for expected ¢redit loss | 1,786 L410
Operating profit / (Joss) before working capital ehanges 3,901 2,079
_._ Movement in working capital: '
4 Decrease / (increase) in trade receivables 211 1,957
' Decrease / (increase) in inventories (79) -
) Decrease f (inctease) in other current asseis : (50} 21
T Decrease f (increase) in other current financial assets . {315) {2,152)
{Decrease) /increase in trade payables : ) (812) L 412
{Decrease) / increase i provisions 379 77
- (Decrease) / increase in other current liabilities 369 (412}
(Decrease) / inerease in other current financial liabilit fas - 954 1,087
Decrease / (increase)} in other non-curent assets 2 A
Cash (used in) / generated from operations 4,060 3,000
Direct tax (paid), net of refunds - (260} {1,049)
Net eash inflow / (ontflow) from operating activities 3,800 1,951
B. |CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest received : 101 -
Net task inflow / {(oniflow) from investing activities 101 -
C. ICASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES :
Interest paid (24) . {1830
- : _ Net cash infTow / (outflow)} from linancing activifies (24} {180}
D. [Netincrease /{decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+() 3.377 1,771
~ E [Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 131 (1,640}
Cash and cash equivalents af the end of the year (D+E} 4,008 - 131

Reconclliation of cash and cash equivalents as per the statement of the cash flows

Cash and cash equivalents as per above comprise of the following March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Cash and cash squivalents : 4,008 131
Balances as perstatement of cash flows 4,008 ) 131

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements. ,«/'“\

Asg per our report of even date

For Mahesh P. & Co. Foar and on behaif of the Baard-of Directors
Chartered Accountants r g

LA A
Mahesh P. Brajeth Kumar Bikash Mishra
Director Director
Membership No. 032699 (DIN: 07833562} _ {DIN: 07900700)

Place: New Delhi
Date: April 29, 2022

* i MEMBERSHIP

%’\_ 32698
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Notes to the financizl statermonts

1. Company overview
ADIS Enterprises Private Limited {“the Company™) is a company Timited by shares, ircorporated and domiciled in India. The Company was mcotporated

on September 10, 2018, Its registered office is situated at 401, 4% flpor, Majestic Shopping Centre, J55 Road, Ambew Adi, Girgawn, Munibai - 400004,
India

The Company is engaged in the business of rendering facility management services.

During the year ended March 31, 2020, Dusters Total Solutions Services Private Limited ('DTSS") has acquired 51% of outstanding equity shares of the
Company from the existing sharcholders. With this acguisition, the Company has become snbsidiary of DTSS.

During the year ended March 31, 2021, Dusters Total Solutions Services Private Limited (‘DTSS') has acquired remaining 4% of outstanding equity
shates of the Company from the existing shareholders. With this acquisition, the Company has become whally owned subsidiary of DTSS.

These financial statements were authorized for issue by the directors en April 29, 2022,

2. Bummary of significast accomming policies
This note provides s list of significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements,

AL Basis of preparatios

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indimn Accounting Standards (Ind-AS) and comply in all meterial respects with the Ind-AS
and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Companies Act™) and guidelines issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of
India (SEBI). The Ind-AS are notified under Section 133 of the Act read with Rule 3 of the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as

amended from time o time. i

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) through a notification, emended Schedule I of the Companies Act, 2013 and the amendments are applicable for
financial periods commencing from Apil i, 202¢. The Company has evaluated the effect of the amendments on its financial statements and compiied with

the same,

The financial siatements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR) and are rounded off to the nearest millions {*Mi’) except per share data and unless stated
otherwise. Due to rounding off, the numbers presented throughout the document may not add up precisely to the totals and percentages riay not precisely
reflect the absolute fgures. The figures which are appearing as *0'are result of rounding off,

2.2 Bagis of measurement ' )
The fingncial statements have been prepared undar the historical cost convention on an accrual and going concern basis, except for the following material

items which have besn measured at fair value as required by relevant Ind-AS: .
a) certain financial assets and financial liabitities (including derivative financial instruments) and contingent consideration that are measured at fair value;

b) assets held for distribution to owners upon demerger that are held at lower of carrying cost and fair value less cost to distribute;
¢} share based payments; and )
d} the defined benefit asset / {lability} which is recognised as the present value of defined benefit obligation bess fair value of plan assets.

Accounting policies have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these financial statements. Further, previous year figures have been
regrouped/re-arranged, wherever necessary. )

The financial statements are based on the classification provisions contained in Ind AS 1, ‘Presentation of Financial Statements’ and division 11 of schedule
IH of the Companies Act 2013, For the purpose of clarity, varions items are aggregated in the statements of profit and loss and balance sheet, These items
are disaggregated separately in the notes to the financial statements, where applicable or required.

Fair value messereseat -

The Company records certain financial assets end liabilities at fair value on a recurring basis. The Company determines fair value besed on the price it
~would receive to sell an asset or pay to trnsfr & lahifity f an arderly fransaction hefween market participants at the measurement date and in the principal

or most advantageons market for that asset or Liability, .

Fauir valae hierarchy

T.evel T - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or Kubilities. Lovel | hisrarohy ineludes financinl instruments measured using
quoted prices. This inchides Hated equity instruments, bonds and debentures and mwtmal funds that have queted price. The fair valve of all
- financial instruments which are traded in the stock exchanges is vatued using the closing price as 2t the reporting period.

Leevel 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within Leved 1 thal are olservable lor ihe assel or hubilty, either directly {i.e. 25 prices) ot indirectly (i.e.
derived from prices). The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuation techniques
which maximize the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to
fair value an mstrument are observgble, the instrument is included in level 2.

" Lewel3- Inputs for the assets or Iiabﬁitieé that are not based on ebservable market data (unobservable inpuis). If cne or more of the significant inputs is not
based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3. This is the ease for unlisted equity securities included in level 3.

In accordance with Ind-AS 113, ‘Fair value measurement’, assets and liabilities are to be measured based on the following valuation techn.iqucﬁ:
(i)  Market approach — Prices and ether relevant information generated by market transactions involving identical ar comparable assets or liabilities,

(i) Income approach — Converting the futore amounts based on market expectations to its present value using the discounting method.
(iii} Cost approach - - Replacement cost method.

23 Suminary of significant accomnting policies
s} Current versus non-current chassificatfon

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on cument / non-current classification. An asset is classified as current when it is:

(i)—Expected to-be tealised or-intended to-besold-orconsumed i the normal-operating eyels;

(ity  Held primarily for fhe purpose of trading:
{iii) Expecied to be realised within twelve months afier the reporting period; or

il
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All in INR thousonds except shore doto
(iv)  Cash or cash equivalent unless the asset is restricted from being exchanged or used to setile a liability for at least twelve months after the meporting
period;

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is currenl when:

i}  Ttisexpected o be settled in the normal operating cycle;

(if) It is held peimarily for the purpose of trading;

(i} It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or

(iv) There is no unconditional right to defer the setilement of the Liability for at least twelve months afier the reporting period. Terms of a liability that
could, at the eption of the counterparty, result in its settiement by the fssue of equity instruments, do not affect its classification,

The Company classifies all other Jiabilities as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

I3} Property, plent and equipme;nt
Recognition am] messurement

An item 13 recognised as an asset, if and only if, it is probable that the fisture economic benefits associated with the ftem will flow to the Company and its
cost can be measured reliably. Items of property, plant and equipment (‘PPE") are initially recognized at cast. Freehold land is carried at historical cost. Al

- other ftems of property, plant and cquipment are measured at cost less wocutnulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Cost comprises the
purchase price, asset retiement obligation and directly attributable cost of bringing the asset {0 its working condition for its intended use. Any trade
discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price. General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable fo the constructton of a
quahifying asset are capitalized as part of the cost,

Subsequent expenditure related to an item of property, plant and equipment is added to its carrying value only when it increases the future benefits from the
existing assel heyand itz previonsly assessed standard or peried of parformance. All other cxpenses on existing propeely, plunt wid eyuipment, iveluding
day-to-day repairs, maintenance expenditure and cost of replacing parts, are charged 10 the statement of profit and.loss in the year during which such
expenses are incurred. i )

Froperty, plant and equipment under construction and cost of assets not ready for use at the year-end are disclosed as capital work-in-progress ¢ CWIP').

Advances given towards purchase of an item of properiy, plant and equipment outstanding us al each balance theet date are disclosed under other non-
financial assets. .

Depreciation

The Company depreciates property, plamt and equipment over the estimated useful lives using wiitten down value method from the date, the assets are
available for use, : :

The estimated useful lives of assets are as Tollows:

B . Category Useful life

Buildings 60 years

Plant and machinery Sto [5 years

. Leasshold improvement Shorter of useful life or lease period
- Right-of-use assets Lease period
© [Computer equipment 3 years

Furniture and Aixtures 10 years

Office Equipment 5 years

Velhicles 8 years

Based on technical assessment, the useful lives a3 given above hest represent the period over which the management expects to use those assets, The
~ estimated useful lives for these ossets may therefore he different from: the usiful lives preseribed under Part C of Schedule 11 of the Companies Act 2013,

The residual values are gencrally not more than 5% of the ariginal cost of the asset. The asset™s residual values, nseful lives and methods of depreciation
of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial year-end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Additions are depreciated on a pro-rata basis from the date, the asset is available for use till the date the assets are derecognised.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant paet, initially recognised, is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economis benefits
are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference betweer the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset) is recognised in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognised.

¢} Investment properiics i
Praperty that is held for long-term rental yields or for capital appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by the Company, is classified as investment

property.

- Investihent properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs, Subsequent to initial recognition, investment propertics are stated at onst
less accurmulated depueciation und acownviated impaiment loss, if any.

The cost includes borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if the recopnition criteria are met. Subsequent expendituce is capitalized to the asset’s

camying amount only when it is probabie that Future economic benefits associated with the expenditure wiil flow fo the Company and the cost of such.
S expenditure can be measured reliably. All other repair and maintenance costs are recagnized in profit or loss as incurred. When part of an investment
- property is replaced, the carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognized, .

Tnvestment properties are depreciated using written down value methad ever their estimated useful lives of 60 years. The useful life has been determined
based on & technical evaluation performed by the management’s expert.

Investrent properties are derccognized either when they have been disposed of or when they are permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic
benefit is expected from their disposal. The difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset is recognized.in profitorloss . _ -
i the period of derecognition. : : i .
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1} Itangible sssels

. Recognition and measurement
Intangible assets are recognized when the Company contrals the asset, it is probable that futare economic benefits attributed 10 the asset will flow to the
Company and the cost of the asset can be measured reliably. Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition af historical cost. The
cost of intangible assets acquired in a business combination is their fair value at the date of acquisition.
Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost [ess any acoumulated amorlisation and accumulated impairment losses, internally
generated intangibles, excluding capitalised sofiware development costs, are not capitalised and the refated expenditure is reflected in profit or loss in the
period in which the expenditure is incurred. :

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only when it increases the fiture economic benefits from the specific agset to which it relates.

The usefirl lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life
on a written down value method and assessed for jmpairment whenever there is an indication 1hat the imangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation
period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the
expected useful ife or the expected pattern of consumption of filtyre economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered 1o modify the amortisation
period or method, as approptiate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates and adjusted accardingly, The amortisation expense on infangible
assets with finite lives is recognised in the statement of profit and loss,

The estimated useful lives of intangible assets are as follows:
Category : Useful life

] Computer software 5 years _I

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceads and the carmying amount
of the asset and are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the asset is derecogmised,

Software
Costs incurred in developing products or systems and costs fcurred in acquiring software and licenses 1hat will contribute to Future period financial
benefits through revenue peneration andfor cost reduction are capitalised to software and systems. Costs capitalised include exteral direct costs of

materials, services, and direct payroli and related costs of employees' time spent on the Pprafect.

¢} Iavestment in subsidinrics, assovintes srd foint ventures
A subsidiary is an entity over which the Company has control. The Company controls an investee entity when it is exposed to,or has rights 10 variable
retums from its invelvement with the entity and has the ability to affect these retums through its power over the entity,

An associate is an entity over which the Company has significant influence. Significant influence is the power to perticipate ir the financial and aperating
pelicy decisfons of the investee but is not control or joint control of those policies. This is generally the case where the Company holds between 20% and

50% of the voting rights.

A joint venturz is & type of joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assefs of the joint venture,
Joint contrel is the contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities require the
unanimous consent of the parties sharing controf.

The considerations made in determining whether significant influence or Joint condrol exist are similar to those necessary to determine control over the
subsidiaries, :

Investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures is sccounted for at cost less impairment loss, if any, The said investments are tested for
impairment whenever circumstances indicate that their cammying value may exceed the recoverable amount.

i Finoncial instrumenis
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and & financial Kability or equity instrument of another entity,

Finaneial asscts

-Initial recogaition and measurement )
All financia! assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of Fnanciz] zssets not recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs

“that are atfributable to the acquisition of the fnancial asset. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame
established by regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Compaty commits to
purchase or sell the asset.

Subsequent measurement

For purpnses of subsequent measurement, financizl assets are classified in below categories:

(i)  Financial assefs at smortised cost ’ .

(if}  Financial assets at fait value through other comprehensive income (FVT OoCD

(iii) PFinancial assets, derivaiives and equity instraments at fair value theough prefit or loss (FYTPL)

‘Financial instruments at amortised cost ’
- A “Financial assers is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:
() The asset is held within a business model whose objective is ta hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and
(i}  Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI} on the principal

amouttt putstanding.

Afier initial measurement, such firancial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (BIR) methed. EIR is the rafe

- that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset 1o the gross carrying amount of a financial asset. When
calculating EIR, the Company estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument {for example,
prepayments, extensions call and similar options) but does not consider the expected credit losses, Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
diseount or premium on acqoisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The interest income based on EIR s inchided as interest income as
4 part of other income in fhe statement of profit and loss. The losses arising from impairment ate recognised in profit or loss. A gain or loss on such
financial asset which is not part of a hedging. relstionship is recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derccognised. This category genemlly applies to
rade and other receivables.
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Financial instruments at FVTOCI

A “financial asset’ is classified as al the FVTOCL if both of the following criteria are met:

{f)  The ohjective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash Nows and selling the financial assets, and
(ii) The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPL

* Financial asseis included within the FVTOCT catepory are measured as at each reporting date at fair value. Fair value movements ate recopnized in the

other comprehensive income (OCI). However, the Company recopnizes interest income caleulated using the EIR method, impairment losses & reversals
ang foreign exchange pain or foss in the profit or loss. On derecognition of the asset, cumulative gaitt or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified
Erom equity to profit or loss.

Finagcial instruments at FVTPL

* FVTPL 13 a residual category for financial assets. Any financial asset, which does not meet the criteria for calegerization as at amoetized cost or as

FYTOCL, is classified as at FVTPL.

In addition, the Company may elect to designate a financial assets, which otherwise meels amortized ¢cost ar FVTQC] ¢riteria, as at FEVTEL. However, such
clection is made only if daing se reduces or eliminates a measursment or recognition incansistency (referred 10 as ‘accounting mismateh’).

Financial assets included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the profit or loss in respect of such assets
ihat are not part of a hedging relationship. The gain /loss on assets measured at FVTPL are presented in the statement of profit and loss within other
gains/losses in the perfod in which it arises. Interest income From these financisf assets is included in other income.

Equity investiments i

All equity investments in scope of Ind-AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instraments which are held for trading and contingent consideration
recognised by an acquirer in & business combination 0 which Ind-AS 103 app]les are classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity instruments, the
Company may make an irrevocable election to present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value, The Cumpany makes such
election on an instrument-by-instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.

- If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, ther afl fair value changes on the instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized

in the OCL There is no recycling of the amounts from OCI to prof’ t or lass, even on sale of investment. However, the Company may iransfer the
cumulative gain or loss within equity.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPT, category are messimed at fair value with gaml’loss presented in the statement of profit and loss within other
gams’losses in the period in which it arises.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (o1, where applicable, a part of a financial assel or pant ul'a group ufmrm‘lar financial assets) is primarily daa-emgmed (i.e. removed from

the Company 's balance sheet) when:

{i)  The righis to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

(ii) The Company has transferred its rights fo receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in fult
without maferial delay to a third party under a *pass-throngh® amangement; and either (a) the Company has fransferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially afl the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred

control of the asset,

When the Company has not teansferred substant:al]y all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is not derecognized.
Similarly, where the Company remms control of the Auaucial assal, the sssel v contined o be recognised 1o thee exient of continuiny invalverent in the
financial asset.

¥mpairment of financial assets

The Compeny recognizes loss allowances en a forwarddooking basis using the expected credit Joss (ECL) mode] for the financial assets which are not fair
valued through profit or loss. Lifetime ECL aflowance is recognized for trade receivables with no significant financing component. For all other
financial assets, expected cradit losses are measured at an smowmnt equal to the 12-month ECL, unless there has been a significant increase in credit risk
from iitial recognition in which case they are measured at lifetime ECL, How the Company deterrmines whether there has been a significant increase in the
credit risk has been detailed in the notes to the financial siatments. The ameunt of expected credit losses {or teversal) that is required to adjust the loss

allowance at the reporting date is recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

Financial liabilities

Initia] recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial labilities at fair value through profit or loss, borrowings, payables, or as derivatives
dCSIgnated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate, :
All financial liabitities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Company’s financial linbilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank overdrafis, financial puarantee contracts and

_ derivative financial instruments.

Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described balgw,

Financial liabilities at fair valac through profi¢ or less
Financial liahilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial Eabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of

" . repurchasing in the near term. This catepory also includes derivative financial instruments, if any entered into by the Company that are not designated

as hedging instraments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind-AS 109. Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless
they are designated as effective hedging instruments. Gains or losses on llat_nhtles held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.

‘Financial Habilities designated upon initial recognition at fait value through profit or loss are designated at the initial date of recognition, and ooly if

the criteria in Ind-AS 108 arc satisficd. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value pains/losses attributable to changes in own credit risk are
recognized i OCL These painsflosses are not subsequently transferred to profit or less. Howevet, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain. or

loss within equity, Al other changes in fair value of such Tiability are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
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Borrowings
After initial recognition, borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the procceds (net of transaction costs) and the

redempticn amount is recognised in profit or loss over the petiad of the borrowing using the EIR method. Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities
are recognised as transaction costs of the Joan o the extent it is probable that some or all of the Facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fea is deferred
until the draw down oceurs. To the extent there is no evidence that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is CBIJ]t&]!SEd as
& prepayment for liquidity services and amortised over the peried of the facility 1o which it relates,

Preference shares which are mandatorily redeemable are classified as liabilities. The dividends on these preference shares, to the extent such dividends are
mandaterily payable, are recognised in profit or loss as fi 10ANCE COSTS.

The fair value of the Jiability portion of an optionally conventible debenture/ bond/ preference share or a zero-coupon debenture/ bond/ preference share or
compulsorily convertible debenture/preference shares whete the price of conversion of the debenture/preference shares into equity share is not fixed, is
determined using a market rate of interest for an equivalent non-convertible bond. This amaumnt is recorded as a liability on an amortised cost basis

until extinguished on conversien or redemption of the bonds. The remainder of the proceeds is attributable to the equity portion of the compound financial
instrument. This is recognised and included in sharehelders’ equity, net of income tax effects, and not subsequenty remeasured.

When the terms of a financial liability are renegotiated and the entity isswes equity instrument 1o a creditor to extinguish all or part of a Hability (debt for
equity swap), a gain of loss i3 recognised in profit or loss, which is measured as the difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability and the
fair value of the equity instrument issized.

Bortowings zre classified as current liabilities untess the Company has an unconditional dght te defer settlement of the lisbility for at least 12 months after
the reporting period. Where there i a breach of 2 material provision of a long-term loan arrangement on or before the end of the reporting period with the
effect that the liability becomes payable on demand on the reporting date, the entity does not classify the liability as current, if the lender agreed, after the
reporting period and before the approval of the financial statements for issue, not to demand payment as a consequence of the breach.

Financial guarantee contracis
Financial gearantee conteacts issued by the Company are those contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs

because the specified debtor fails 1o make a payment when due in accordance with the tertns of a debt instument, Financis! guarantee contracts are
Tecognisad in.itia]fy as a liability at fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly aitributable to the istuance of the gwaramiee, with
corresponding increase in investment in subsidiary, Subsequently, the liability is measured at the higher of the amount of loss allowance determined as per
impairment requirements of Ind-AS 109 and the amount recognised Iess cumulative amottisatiot.

Financial Guarantes issued by the parent of the Company are recognized initially as a pre-payment at fair value with corresponding credit to equity
-contribution by the parent, The pre-payment is amortized over the period of financial guarantee or: straight-line basis, and recognized as finance cost in the
statement of profit and [ass.

Derecagnition
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the Hahility is discharged or cancelled or expires. The difference between the camying

amount of a financial liability that has been extinguished or transferred to another party and the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets
transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or lass as other pains/ losses. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an exisling liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as
the derecognition of the original Liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respeciive carrying amounts is recogmised in the
statement of profit and loss as other gainsJosses.

Drerivatives

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative contract is eatered into and are subsequently remeasured to their fair value at the
end of each reposting period. The accounting for subsequent changes in fair value depends upon whether the derivative is designated as a hedging
instrument, and if 30, the nature of the item being hedged, and the type of hedge relationship designated.

Derivatives which are not designated as hedges are accounted for at fair value through profit or loss and are included in other gains/ losses.

Embedded derivatives
An embedded derivative is a component of a hybrid {sombined) instrament that also includes a non-derivative hast contract — with the effect that some of

the cash flows of the combined instrument vary in 2 way similar to a stand-alene derivative- An embedded derivative causes some or all of the cash flows
that otherwise would be required by the contract to be modified according to a specified interest rate, financial instrument price, commedity price, foreign

- exchangg rate, index of prices or rates, credit rating or eredit index, or other variable, provided in the case of a non-financial variable that the variable is not
specific to a party to the contract.

If the hybrid contract contains a host that is a financiaf esset within the scope of Ind-AS 109, the Company does not separate embedded derivatives, Rather,
it applies the classification requirements contained in Ind-AS 109 to the entire hybrid contract. Derivatives embedded in all other host contracts are
accounted for as separate derivatives and recorded at fair value if their economic characteristics and risks are nat closely related to these of the host
contracts and the host contracts are not held for trading or designated at fair value though profit or Toss. These embedded derivalives are mensured at fair
~value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss, unless designated as effective hedging instrements. Reassessment onfy occurs if there s either
a change in the terms of the contmct that significantly modifies the cash flows that would otherwise be requived or a reclassification of a ﬁnanual asset out
of the fair value !hmugh profit or loss,

Reclasslfication of financial assets
The Company determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition. After initial recegnition, no reclassification is made for
financial assets which are equity instruments and financial liabilities. For financial assets which are debt instruments, a reclassification is made only if there
is 2 change in the business model for managing those assets. Changes w the business model are expected to be infrequent. The Company’s senier
managemeat determine changes in the business model as a result of external or internal changes which are significant to the Company's operations. Such
changes are evident to extemal parties. A change in the business model accurs when the Company either begins or ceases to perform an activity that is
- -sigaificant to its operations. If the Company reclassifies financial assets, it applies the reclassification prospectively from the reclassification date which is
the first day of the immediately next repomng period following the change in business model. The Company does not restate any previously recognised

gains, [oszes (including impairment gains or losses) or inferest.

OMizetting of financial instruments
. Financial agsets and financial liabilities are offset, and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there és 4 currently enforceable legal right 1o offset

. the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a ne! basis, 1o realise the assets and sattle the liabilities smultaneously The legally enforeeable’
- wight must not be contingem on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or -
bankruptcy of the Company of the counterparty, :
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g} Trade recebvabics
Trade zeceivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequenily measured at amortised cost using the effective interesi methiod, less provision for
impairment (allowance for expected credit loss). . .

hy Current and deforred tox .
Income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period’s taxable income based on the applicable tax vate adjosted by changes in
deferred tax assets and liabilities atributable to temporary differences and 10 unused tax losses / unused tax credits.

Current tax
The current income 1ax charge is calculated on the basis of tax laws enacted or substantially enacted at the end of the reporting period. Manapement

pericdically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subfect to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where apprepriate on the basis of amounts expected io be paid to tax authorities.

Deferred tax
Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the 1ax bases of assets and liabilities and their cafrying amounts in the

financial statements at the reporting date,
Deferred tax Habilities are recopnised for all taxable temporary differences, except;

()  When the deferred tax lishility arises from the initial recognition of zoadwill ar an sssef or liability in a trensaction that is not a business
combination that, at the time of the transaction, affects nefther the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss

(i}  in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint ventures, when the timing of
the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse i the foreseeable future

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductibls temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any unuosed tax losses. Deferred rax
assets are Tecognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the camy
forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except

(i) When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductibile temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of sn asset or Liability in a transaction
that is nat a buginess combination that, at the time of the transaction, affecis neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss

(i) In respect of dednctible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associaes and interests in joint ventures, deferred tax
assets are recognised onfy to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will
. be available against which the femporary differences can be utitised. :

The carrying amount of deferred 1ax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that if is no longer probabie that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date
and are recognised to the extent that it kas become probable that futare taxable profits will allow ihe deferred tax asset to be recoverad.

Defermed tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realised or the Hability is settled,
bascd on iax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted st the reporiing date. The effect of changes in tax rates on deferred income
1ax assets and Liabilities is recognized as income or expense in the period that includes the enactment or the substantive enactment date. )

Deferred tax assets and deferved tax liabilities are offsef if a legally enforceable vight exisis lo set off curent tax assets against current tax liabilities.
The 5ie¢ amount of tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation autharity is included as part of receivables or pryables in the balance sheet.

Effective from April 1, 2019, the Company has adopted the option of lower effective corporate tax rate of 25.17% (incleding surcharge and cess), as per
Section 115BAA of Income Tax Act. .

Current and deferred tax is recognised in prafit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directty in
equity. In this case, the 1ax is also recognised in other comprehensive icome or directly in equity, respectively.

it Imventaries )
Inventories are valued at the lower of the cost or net realizable value. Net reslizable value is the estimared selling price in the ordinary course of
business, less estimated costs of completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale. Cost includes custom duty, freight and other charges a5
applicable, The Company pericdically reviews inventories to provide for diminution in the value of, andfor amy unserviceable or obsolete, inventoties.

Cosls incurred in bringing each product to its present location and condition are zccounted for as follows:

Traded goods: cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present lacation and condition, Cost is
~ determiued an first in, first out basis, :

i) Cask and cash equivaionts ) ]
Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash 2t banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original matarity of three months or
less, which are readily convertible to known amounts of eash and cash equivalents and subject o an insignifieant risk of changes in value,

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cask and short-term depasits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank
overdialls {including cash credit Facilities) 2% they are considered an intogral part of the Company's ¢ash management, Bunk overdrafts are shown within
borrowings in current lizbilities ir: the halance shest.

k) Non-current assets held for sale’distribation to owners and discontinued aperatons

The Compeny classifies non-current assets and disposal groups as held for sale/distribution 1o owners if their camrying amounts will be recovered
principally through = sale/distribution rather than through continuing use and where a sale is considered highly probable. Actions required to complete the
sale/distribution shauld indicate that it is unlikely that significant changes to the sale/distribution will be made or that the decision 1o sell/distribute will be
withdrawn and Management must be committed to the sale/distibution being completed within one year from the date of classification.

Nari-utett 2556t held Tor salc/tor distimbimn o ownrs A dispasal groups are mewvured at the [ower of their semying nmount and the fuir valne Jess

“costs to selldistribute except for assets such as deferred tax assets, assets arising from employee benefils, firancial assets and contractual rights under
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Revenue is recognized when the control is transferred to the customer and when the Company has vompleted its performance oblizations under the
contracts. Revenue is recognized in a manner that depicts the tmnsfer of goods and services 10 customers at an amount that reflects the consideration the

Company expects to be entitled fo in exchange for those goods or services.

Revenue is recopnized as foliows:

{)  Revenue from services represents the amounts receivable for setvices rendered.

(ii)  For non-contract-based business, revenue represants the value of goods delivered or services performed.

(iii)  For contract-based business, revenue represents the sales value of wark carried out for customers during the period. Such révenues are recognized in
the periad in which the service is rendered,

(iv) Unbilled revenue (contract assets) net of expected deductions is recognised at the end of each period. Such unbilled revenue is reversed in the
subsequent period when actual inveice is raised. .

(v)  Unecamned /defemred revenue (contract liabilities) represents revenue billed but for which services have not yet been performed. The same is released
1o the statement of profit and loss as and when the services are rendered. )

{vi} Revenuc from the use of assets such as rent for using propenty, plant and equipment i recogmized on a steaight-line basis over the terms of the
related leases unless payments are structured io increase in line with the expected general inflation to compensate for the Iessors’ expected

inflationary cost increase.

Sale of goads . :
Revenue from the sale of gonds is recognised when the control of goods has been transfirred, being when the praducts are deli vered to the buyer, the buyer

having the full discretion over the use of the goods and there is no onfulfilled obligation that could affect the bayer's acceptance of the product. Delivery
occars when the products ave been shipped 0 the specific location, the risks of obsolescence and loss hava been transferred to the buyer, and either the
buyer has accepted the preducts in accordance with the sales contract, the acceptance provisions have lapsed, or the Company has ohjective evidence that
all criteria for acceptance have been satisfied. Revenue from the sale of goods is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net
of returns and allowances, trade discounts and volume rebates. Discounts and rebates are estitnated based on accumulated experience. The Company
provides normal wartanty provisions for general repairs for ane year on all its products sold, in line with the industry practice. A liability is recognised st
the time the product is sold. Revenue is defemred and recognised on a straight line basis over the extended warranty period in case warranty is provided to
customer for & period beyvond one year, i

Rendering of serviees
In contracts involving the rendering of services, revenue is measured using the proportionate cotpletion method when no significant unceriainty exists

regarding the amount of the consideration that wilt be derived from rendaring the service. Whea the contract outcome cannot be measured reliably, revente
is recognised only to the extent that the expenses incurred are shigible 1o be recavered. :
Estimates of tevente, costs or extent of progress towards completion are revised if circumstances change, Any resulting increases or decreases in estimated
revenue or costs are reflected in profit or loss in the perfod in which the circumstances that give rise to the revision become known to the managemet.

Multiple-element arrangements
Whex a sales artangement contains muitiple elementis, such as services, material and maintenance, revenus for each element is determined basad on each

element’s fair value.

Revenue recognition for delivered elements is limited to the amount that is nol confingent on the future delivery of products or services, future
performance obligations or subject to customer-specified retumn or refund privileges.

The undisconnted cash flows from the arrangement are periodically estimated and compared with the unamortized costs. If the unamortized costs exceed
the undiscounted cash flow, a loss is recopnized. ’ . :

Interest income .
For alt financial assets measured either at amontised cost or at fair vahie through other comprehensive income, interest income is recorded using the

effective interest rate (EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipls over the expected life of the financial
instrument or a shoster period, whete appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset or to the amortised cost of a financial liability. When
caleulating the effective interest rafe, the Company estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual ferms of the financial instnsment
(for exaniple, prepayment, extension, call end similar options) but does not consider the expected credit losses. Ideiest insume is included in other income
in the statement of profit and loss. . ;

Dividends .
Dividend inceme from investments is recognised in profit or loss as other income when the Company’s right to Teceive payments is established, it is
probable that the economic benefils associated with the dividend will How to the Company, and amount of the dividend can be measured relizbly.

Rental income . .
Reutal income arising from operating leases on investment properlies is acceunted for on 2 streight-line basis over the Jease term unless payments are

-structored to increase in line with the expected general inflation to compensate for the lessor’s expected inflationary cost increase and is included in
revenue in he statement of profit or loss due to its operating nature.

- 4) Forcipn coerency transtation .
. .The financial statements of the Company are presemted in Indian Rupees {(INR) which is also the Company’s functional curency,ie, the currency of

the primary economic environment in which the Company operates.

Transactions in forcign currencies ars initially recorded by the Company at their respeciive funetional currency spot rares prevailing at the date, the
transaction first qualifies for recognition.

- Monetary assels and liabilities-denominated in Foreigh currencies are translated at the fanctional curreacy spot rates prevailing as at the reporting date.

Subsequently, differences arising on restatement or settlement of monetary items ate recognised in profit or loss. Non-monetary items that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions and translation differences are
recognized in QCE with the accumulation in other equity as foreign currency translation reserve. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign
curtency Ate transiated using the exchange rates af the date when the fair value is defermined. The gain er loss arising on translation of non-monetary items
measared at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on ihe change in fair value of the item (ie., translation differences on items

whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in OCI or profit or loss are also recognised in OCI or profit or Toss, respectively).
The equity items denominated in toretzm burrcnecics arc transtated ot historieal eost.

] Emplovee henefits
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The Company”s employee benefits mainly include wages, salaries, bonuses, compensated absences, defined contribution t plans, defined benefit plans and
“share-based payments, The employee benefits are recognized in the year in which the assoriated services are rendered by the employees of the Company.

_ Short-term obligations
Liabilities for wages and salacies, including non-monetary benefits and compensated absences expected te be seitied within twelve months after the end of

the period in which the employees render the related service are recognised in respect of employees' services up 1o reporting date and are measured at the
ameunts ¢xpected 10 be paid when the liabilities are settled. The lisbility for compensated absences is recognised in the pravision for employee benefits,
- All othey short-term employee benefit obligations are presentsd as employee benefiis payable under other financial liabilities, corrent,

Bonus ’
The Company recognises a liability and an expense for bonuses. The Company recognises 2 provision where coniractually or legally obliged or whers there

is & past practice that has created a constructive obligation.

: Compensated absences/Leave oblipations )
) The employees of the Company arc entitled 0 compensated absences which are both accumulating and non-accumulating in nature. The employees
’ <an carty forward op fo a specified portion of the umtilized accumulated compensated absences and utilize it in future periods or receive cash at
' zetirement. The expected cost of accumulating compensated absences is determined by actuarial valwation (using the projected unit credit method) based
on the additional amount expected o be paid 85 & result of the wused emtitlement that has accumulated a1 the balance sheet date. The expense on
noo-accumulating compensated absences is recognized in the statement of profit and loss in the year it which the sbsences occur Re-measurements
arising out of actuarial gains / losses are immediately taken into the staterent of profit and foss and are not deferred.

In respect of those employees who are entitled to an encashment of the leave at the end of every calendar year, a provision is created to account for the
liability.

The obligations are presented as cureent liabilities in the balance sheet if the entity does not have an unconditional right to defer ssttlement for at least
- twelve months after the reporting date, regardless of when the actual settlement is expected ta oocur.

Post-employment obligations

The Company aperates the following post-smployment schemes:

i) Defined contribution plans such as provident fund and employees’ state insuratice; and
ii)  Defined benefit plans such as gratuity.

Defined comtribution plan
The Company’s policy to contribute on a defined conttibution basis for eligible emplayees, to Employees” Provident Fund, Empiloyees’ Pension Scheme
and Employees” State Insurance Scheme towards post-employment benefits, alf of which are administered by the respective Government anthorities, and
has no firther obligation beyond making its contribution which is expected ini the year in which it pertains. The contributions are accounted for as defined
contribution plans and the contributions are recognised as employee benefit estpense when they are due. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to
the extent that a cash refund or a reduciion in the future payments is available.
Drefined benefit plan ’
. . The Company has a defined benefit plan, viz, Gratuity, for all its employees, the Kability for which is accrued and provided for s determined by an
B : independent actuarial valuation. A portion of this liability for gratuity is contributed to a fund administered and operated by a reputed insurance compeny.
' The liability or asset recognised in the balance sheet in respect of gratuity plans is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the
reparting period less the fair value of plan assets. The defined benefit is actuarinlly determined (using the projected wnit credit method) at the end of each
yesr.

Present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows by reference to market vields on
- govemment bonds at the end of ihe reporting petiods that have approximately similar terms to the related obligation.

The Company recognises ihe following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an expense in the statement of profit and loss:
(1) Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailments and non-routine settlements; and

- (ify  Netimterest expense or meome

Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss on the earlier of®
(i)  The date of the plan amendment or curtgilment, and
(it}  The date that the Company recogniscs relnted restructuring costs.
. The met interest is calculated by applying the above mentioned discount rate to the net bakance of the defined benefit obligations and the fair velue of plan
assets, This cost is included in the employee benefits expense in the statement of profit and Joss,

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined
benefit lizhility and the retum on plan assets (excluding amounts incfuded in net interest on the net defined benefit Liability), are recognised immediately in
the balance sheet with a comesponding debit ar credit to retained eamings through other comprehensive income in the period in which they occur.
Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subssquent periods. : )

Equity scttled stock-based compensation i :
-Employees {inclnding senior executives) of the Company receive remuneration in the form of shara-based payments, whereby employees render services as

- consideration for equity instruments (equity-seetied fransactions).

The cost of equity-seitled transactions is determined by the fair value at the date when the grant is made using an appropriate valuation maedel. The fair
value of options granted under various Employee Share aption plans is recognised as an employee benefits expense with a comresponding increase in equity
. (share option outstanding accounl). .
. The total expense is recognised over the vesting period, which is the period over which all of the specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied. At the end
i of cach perfod, the entity revises Hs wslimubss of the number of optivns that are expscted to vest based on the non-marler vesting and serviee conditions. 1t
) recogmises fthe impact of the tevision to original estimates in the period of change, if any, in the profit or loss, with corresponding adjustment to equity,

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken into account when determining the grant date Fair value of awards, but the likelihood of the

conditions being met is assessed as part of the Company’s best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. Market perfortnance

conditions, if any, are reflected within the grant date fair value. Any other conditions attached to zn award, but without an assotiated service requirement,

urie.considered.1o-be-non-vesting. conditions Non-vesting. conditions-are-retlected-i-ihe- lair- value-ol-un-award-snd-Jead-to-on-immediate-expensing-o f-an —---—-——— -
award unless there are also service and/or performance conditions. . . S :
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No expense is recognised for awards thai do not uitimately vest bacause non-market performance andfor service conditions have not been met. Where
awards include 2 market or non-vesting condition, the transactions are treated as vested irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting condition is
satisfied, provided that ali other performance andror service conditions are satisfied.

The dilutive effect of cutstanding options is reflected as additional share dilution in the computation of dihuted eamnings per share.

Cash settled stock-based compensation

Employees of the Company receive share-based compensation in the form of parent company’s shere options, The cost of cash-settled transactions is
measured initially at fair vaioe at the grant date based on a debit note received from the parent compeany. This fair value is expensed over the period until
1he vesting date with recegnition of a corresponding liability. :

5} Borvowing costs : -
Borrowing costs inclede interest calculated on the effective interest rate method, other costs incurred in conmection with bortowing and exchange
differences atising from foreign currency borrowings to the extent that they are regarded as an adjustment to the interest cost. General and specific
borrowing cosis directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or productien of the assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready
for their intended use or sale (“qualifying assets”), are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale. All other borrawing costs arz expensed in the statement oF profit and loss within finance costs in 1he periad in which they are incuired

t)  Exceptional items
Exceptional iteras refer to items of income or expense within the statement of profit and loss from erdinary activities which are non-recurring and are of
such size, nature or incidence that their separate disclosure is considered necessary to explain the performance of the Company.

u} Leases

Company as a lessee

The Company’s lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for buildings, equipment and vehicles. For any new contracts enred into or changed on or
after April 1, 2019, the Camipany assesses whether a contract is, or contains a lease. A lease is defined as ‘a contract, or part of a contract, that conveys the
right to use an asset (the underlying asset) for a period in exchangs for consideration”. To apply this definition the Company assesses whether the contract
teets three key evaluations which are whether; :

(i) the contract cantains an identified asset, which Is either explicitly identified in the contract or implicitly specified by being identified at the time the
asget is made available to the Company :

(if) The Companty has the right to obtain substantially afl of (be economiv betefils fiom uss of e identified assel thoughout the period of use, considering
its rights within the defined scope of the contract

(iii) The Company has the right w direct the use of the identified asset throughout the period of use.

The Company assesses whether it has the right to direet “how and for what purpose’ the asset is used thronghout the period of use.

Measnrement and recognition of leases as a lessee

At lease commencement date; the Company recognises a right-of-use asset (‘ROU”) and a corresponding lease Kiability on the balance shest. The right-of-
use asset is measured at cost, which comprises of the initial measurement of the lease liability, any initial direct costs incurred by the Company, an estimate
“of any costs to dismantle and remove the asset at the end of the lease, #nd any lease paymenis made in advance of the lease commencement date (et of any
incentives received). : .

The Company depreciates the right-of-use assets using the written down value method from the lease commencement date to the eadier of the end of the
useful life of the right-of-use asset or the end of the lease term. The Company also assesses the right-of-use asset for impairment when such indicators

exist,
IndAS116 requires lessees to determine the lease tenm as the non-canceliable period of a leass adjusted with an option to extend or terminate the lease, if

the use of such option is reasonably certain. The lease term in foture periods is reassessed to ensure that the lease term eflects the cument economic
circumstances. .

Extension and termination options are included in a pumber of leases of the Company. These are used to maximise opetational flexibility in terms of
ouanaging the assets used in the Company's operations. The majority of extension and termination options held are exercisable only by (ke Company axd

not by the respective bessor.

At the commencement date, the Company measures the lease lizbility at the present value of the lease payments unpaid at that date, discounted using the
Interest rate implicit in the lease if that rate is readily available or the Company’s incremental borrowing rate. Lease payments included in the measarement
of the fease liability are comprises of fixed payments (including in substance fixed), variable payments based on an index or rate, amounts expected to be
payable under a residval value guarantes and payments arising from options reasonably certain 1o be exercised. ’

Subsequent 1o initinl meamurement, the liability wifl be redoced fin prayments nuade aed invreasad for interest, I is remessured to reflect any reassessment
‘or modification, or if there-are changes in in-substance fixed paymentis. When the lease liability is remsasured, the corresponding adjustment is reflected in
" the right-of-use asset, or profit and loss if the right-of-use asset is already reduced to zero.

The Company has elected to account for short-term leases and leases of Tow-value assets using the practical expedients. Instead of recognising a right-of-
use asset and lease liability, the payments in relation te (hese are recognised as an expense in profit or loss on 2 straight-line basis over the lease tenm.

Lease hability and right-of-use assets have boon separatoly presented in the notes to the financial statements wndec *Otier financial liability” and “Propenty,
plant and equipment’ {except those meeting the definition of investment property) respeciively. Lease payments have been classified as “Cash flows from
financing activities®,

Company as a lessor :

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantiafly all the risks and rewards of ownership of an asset are classified as operating leases. Rental
income from operating fease is recognised on 2 straight-line basis over il term of the relevant lease unless payments are structured (o increase in line with
the expected general inflation to compensate for the expected inflationary cost increase under “Other Tncome™ in the statemend of Profit and Loss, Initial
direct costs incurved in negotiating and arcanging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of ihe leased asset and recognised over the lease tarm
on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in which they are eamed. The respective leased assets are
included in the balance sheet based on their nature, : ’

Leases are classified as Tinance Jéases when substantially all of the risks and Tewards of ownership transter from the Company to ihe lessee. Amounts due

from lessees under finance leases are recorded as receivables 4t te Company’s net investment in the leases. Finance lease income is allocated 1o

accounting periods so as w reflect a constant periodic rate of retarm pr the net investment oulstanding in respect of the lease.
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The right-of-use asset is subsequently measured at cost less any accamulated depreciation, accumulated impairment losses i any and adiusted for any re.
measurament of the least liabélity.

¥} Impairment of nen-finsneial assets

Goadwill and intangible assets that have an indefinite usefut life are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for impaimment, or more frequently
if events or changes in circumstances indicate that they might be impaired. Other non-financial assets, other than inventories and deferred tax assets, are
tested for impaiment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate thet the camying amount may not be recoverable, An impairment loss is

recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.

The recoverable amount is the higher of its [air value less cost of disposal and its value-in-use. Value-in-use is the present value of future cash fows
expested to be derived from the assel. For the purposes of impairment testing, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately
identifiable cash flows which are largely independent of the cash inffows From other assets or group of assets {cash-penerating units or CGU). Impainment
occurs whe the carrying amount of a CGU including the goodwill, exceeds the estimated recoverable amount of the CGU, For the purpose of impairment
testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocaled to the Company’s CGUs expected to benefit fram the synergies arising from the
business combination. Total impairment oss of a CGU is allocated first to reduce the camying amount of goodwill allocated 1o the CGU and then to the
other essets of the CGU, pro-rala on the basis of the carrying amount of each asset in the CGU. An impairment loss on goodwill recognized in the
statement of profit and loss is not reversed in the subsequent periad. Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for

possible reversal of impairment at the etxd of each reporfing peried.

w} Earpings per share
Basic eamnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit for the period attributable to equity shareholders of the Company {after deduciing
preference dividends and atiributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.

Partly paid equity shares are treated as a fraction of an equity share to the extent that they were entitled to participate in dividends relative 1o a fully paid
equity share during the reporting period. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period s adjusted for events of bonus
issue; bonus element in a rights issue to existing sharcholders; share split; and reverse share split (consotidation of shares).

Dihtted Eamings per share amounts are computed by dividing the net profit attributable fo the equity holders of the Company (after deducting
preferénce dividends and attributable taxes but after adjusting the after income tax effect of interest and other Einancing cost associated with dilutive
potential equity shares) by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic eamings per share and also the weighted
average oumber of equity shares that could have been issued upon conversion of all dilutive potentiat equity shares, The dilvted potential equity shares are
adjusted for the proceeds receivable had the shares been actually issued at fair value (i.e. Ihe average market value of the outstanding shares). Dilutive
patential equity shares are deemed converted as at the beginning of the year, unless issued at a later date. Dilittive poiential equity shares are determined
independently for each year presented, :

¥)  Cask dividend and non-cash distribution to eguity holders of the Company
The Company recognises a lability to make cash or non-cash distribetions to equity holders of the Company when the distribution is authorised and the
distribution is no longer at the discretion of the Company. A comesponding amount is recognised directly in equity,

Non-cash distributions are measured at the carrying value of the assets to be distributed in case of distributions in whick all owners of the same class of
equity instruments are treated equally or the distributed asset is ultimately controlled by the sanie party or parties both before and after the distribution, and
at fair value of the assels to be distributed in other cases, with such value recognised direstly in equity. For this purpose, a proup of individuals shall be
regarded as controlling an entity when, a5 a result of contractual arrangements, they collectively have the power o govem its financial and operating
‘paticies o as to obtain benefits from its activities, and that vitimate collective power is not transitory. Upen distribution of non-cash assets, any difference
between the carrying amount of the liability and the carryiny; amount of the assets diswibuted is recognised in the statement of profit and loss or directly in
the equity as approved by the National Company Law Tribunal / applicable regulatory or other authority.

¥1  Cush flow seakeoent .
Cash flows are reported using he indirect method, whereby profit for the period is adjusted for the effects of transactions of 2 non-cash nature, any
deferrals ar aceruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments and item of incorae or expenses associated with investing of Gnancing cash
flows. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activilies of the Company are segregated,

2.4 Recent Indiag Accounting Standavds (Ind AS) . :
- The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under Companies (Indian Accounting Standasd)

Amendment Rules, 2022 on March 23, 2022, The key amendiments are given below;

IndAS16 - Property, Plaot and egaipment - The amendment clarifies that excess of net sale proceeds of items produced over the cost of testing, if any,
shall not be recognized in the profit ot loss but deducted from the direetly astributable costs considered as part of cost of an item of praperty, plant and
equipment. The effective date for adoption of this amendment is aneual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2022, The Gompany has evaluaied the
amendment and there is no impact on its financial statements :

IndAS 37 —Provisions, Contingent Lizbilities and Contingent Assets ~ The amendment specifies that the ‘cost of fulfilling’ a contract comprises the
-‘costs that relate directly to the contract’. Costs that relate directly 1o a contract an ¢ither be incremental costs of fulfilling that contrast {examples would be
- direct lzbour, materials) or an allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling contracts (an exampls would be the allocation of the depreciation

- charge for an item of property, plant and equipment used in fulfilling the contract). The effactive date for adoption of this emendment is annual periads
beginning or or after April 1, 2022, although early adoption is permitted. The Company has evaluated the amendment and the impact is not expected to be
material

3. Significant accounting judgements, estimates and sssimplions

VUse of estimates and judgment
‘The prepasaion of e luanvial statements in conformiry with Ind-AS requires management to make judgments, estimates and sssumptions {hat affect the
application of accounting policies and the reporied amounts of assets, lizbilities, income and expenses and other comprehensive income (OCT) that are

reported and disclesed in the financial statements and accompanying notes. )

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on 2n ongoing basis. They are based on historical experience and other factors including expectations
of future events that may have = financial jmpact on the Company and that are believed to be reasonable under the citcumstances, Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected.

Judge:r;ents

21



ADIS Enterprises Private Limited

Al in INR thousands except shore dora
In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has made various judgements, which have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the financial statements. :

This note provides an overview of fhe areas that involved a higher degree of judgement or complexity, and of items which are more likely to be materially
adjusted due to estimaies and assumplions turning out to be different than those originally assessed. Detailed information about zach of these estimates and
judgements is included in relevant notes together with information about the basés of caleulation for each affected line item in the financial statements.

Critical estimates and jodgements

The areas involving critical estimates or judgements are:

(i)  Estimation of corrent tax expense and payable — Note §

(i)  Estimated useful life of intangibie assets — Note 2.3.d

(iify Estimation of defined benefit abligation -21

(iv} Recognition of deferred tax assets for caried forwerd of ez losses — Note §

{v} Impairment of trade receivables -8

(vi) Whether assets held for distibution to owners meet the definition of discontinued operations — Nota 2.3 k
Impsirment ’

The Company assesses impairment at each reporting date by evaluating conditions specific to the Company that may lead to impaitment of assets, Where
an impainment trigger exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is determined. Valus-in-use calculations performed in assessing recoverable amounts
incorporate a number of key estimates. There are no reasdnable foreseeable changes in these key estimates which would have caused an impairment of

these assotls, :

Share-based payments

Estimating fair value for share-based paymeant transactions requires detznmination of the most appropriate valuation model, which is dependent on the
terms and conditions of the grant. This estimate aiso Tequires deterinination of the most appropriate inputs to the valuation modsl including the expected
life of the share option, volatility and dividend yield and making assumplions about them. :

Taxes )
Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses 16 the extent that it is probable that laxable profit will be available against which the losses can be
utilised. Significant management jodgement is required to detetrine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing
and the level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies. .

Defined benefit plans {grataity benefits)
The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and other post-employment benefits and the present value of the gramity obligation are defermined using

actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments jn the future. These include the
determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality cates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, &
-defined benefit obligation is highty sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assnmptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

The mortality rate &s based on publicly available mortality tables. Those- mortality tables tend to change only at interval in respanse to demographic
changes. Future salary increases, and gratuity increases are based on expected future inflation rates.

Fzir value messurement of financial instruments

When the fait values of financial assets and financial labilities recorded in the balmice sheet cannot be measured based on quoted pricas in active markets,
their fair value is measured using valuation techniques including the Discounted Cash Flows model. The inputs to these models are taken from observable
markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is requited in establishing fair values. Judgements include considerations of
inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Chianges in assumptions about these factors conld affect the reponted fair value of financial

instryments.

Intangible gsset under development

The Company capitalises development costs for a project in accordance with the accounting policy. Initial capitalisation of costs is based on management’s
judgement that technological and economic feasibility is confimed. In determining the amounts to be capitalised, management makes assumpfions
tegarding the expected future cash generation of the project, discount rates to be applied and the expacted periad of benefits.

Leases . .
Ind AS 116 requires lessees to determine the lease term as the non-canceflable period of a lease adjustad with any option t extend or ferminate the lease, if

the use of such option is reasonably certain. The Company makes an assessment on the expected lease term on o loase-ry-lease basis and there by assesses
whether it is reasonably certain that any options to extend or terminate the coniract wilk be exercised. In evaluating the lease term, the Company considers
factors such as any significant leasehold improvements uadertaken over the lease term, costs relating to the termination of the kease and the importance of
the underlying asset to Company®s aperations taking into account the lovation of the underlying asset the availabiléty of suitahle altematives, The lease
lerm in future petiods is reassessed to ensure that the lease ferm reflects the current econnmic circumstances.

Uncertainties relating to the giobal health pandemie from OOVID-19 )

. The Company has considered the possible effects that may result from the pandemic relating to COVID-19 cn the cerying amounts of financial and non-

- financial assets. The Company has assessed the carrying amounts based on subsequent events and the state of the business operations during the period of
* the pandemic and related infermation including economic forecasts, As a result of this assessment, and based on the cument estimates, the Company

expects that the carrying ameunt of these assets will be recovered, The impact of COVID-19 on the Company's financial statements may differ from that

- estimated as at date of approval of these financial resulfs and the Company will continue to closely monitar any material changes to future economic

conditions.

(This Space has been intentionally lefi blank}
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4, Other finaacisl assers )
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Particulars

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

Other non-carrent financial assets

Other current financial assets

Tnbitled revanue* 3,399 2783
Interest accrued on deposits / investments 11 -

Total pther current financial asseis - 3,610 2,783
Total financial 2s3¢ts 3,614 2,783

* Alk unbilled dues are undisputed and falling under the ageing of less than six months from the date of cotupletion of delivery of goods/services

No lgans or other advances are due from dizectors or other officers of the Company either severally or jointly with any other person and from firms or
private companies respectively in which any director is a partner, 2 director or a member except as disclosed in note 28.
Refer note 28 for the Company’s policy regarding impainment allowance on other financial assets and Company’s credit risk management processes.

5. Imcome {RX
The major compenents of income tax expense for the years ended March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021 are:
Statemnent of profit and loss:

Profit or loss section:
Particulars March 31,2022 | March 31, 2021
Current income tax:
Current income tax charge 21 -
Deferred tax:
Decrease / (increase) in deferred tax assets (net) 176 105
197 105

Income tax expense / (credit) reported in the statement of profit snd loss

OCT section; :
Tax related to items recognised in OCIL during the year:

Particuiars March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021
Tax expense / (credit) on re-measmement of defined benefit plans (149) (230)
Income tax charged to QCI ' (140) 30)

Reconclliation of tax expense and the aceounting profit multiplied by the tax rate for March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021

Particulars March 31,2022 | March 31, 2021
Accounting profit before tax from continuing operations 2,195 430
Accounting profit before income tax ' 2,195 480
Statuory income fax rate 25.17%| 25.17"%
Income tax expense at statutory rate 552 i21
Additional temporary tax deductible in respect of certain benefits under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (344) 282
Non-deductible expenses fur (ax purposes

Other non-dedixtible expenses {11y (298)
Tax expense rcported in the statement of profit and loss 197 165

*The effective tax rate applicable to the Company for the finencial year 2022-23 would be 25,17% {including surcharge and cess) based on the law as it

exisis on (he date of these financial statemetas.

The balance in deferred tax assets/ (liahilities) comprises temporary differences attributabie to:

Particulars March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021
Defined benefit obligations 08| 449 |
Deductions in respect of certain benefits imder the Income Tax Act, 1961 338 1.136
Accruals and others 3 -
Allewance for expected credit loss B04 355
‘Tntal deferred tax assets / (Habilities) 1,904 1,940

L.,S
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insurance contracts, which are specifically exempt from this requirement. Asses and liabilities classified as held for salefdisicibution are presented
separately in the balance sheet.

An impairment loss is recognised for any initial or subsequent write-down of the asset (or disposal-group) to fair value less costs 1o sellrdistribute. A Eain is
recognised for any subsequent increases in fair value less costs to sellf distribute an asset (or a disposal group), but not in excess of any camulative
impairment loss previously recognised. A gain or loss not previously recognised by the date of sale distribution of the non-current asset {or dispasal group)
ig recognised on the date of derecognition. .

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets once classified as held for sale/distribution to owners are not depreciated or amortised.

A dispasal gronp qualifies as discontinued operation if it is a component of an entity that sither has been disposed of, or is classified as held for sale, and:
(i)  Represents s separate major kine of business or geographical area of operations, :

(i)  Is part of & single coordinated plan to dispose of a separate major line of business or geographival area of operations, or

(it} Ts a subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to Tesale

Discontinted opetations are excluded from the results of continuing operations and are presented as a single amount as profit or loss after tax from
discontinued opuralivos in the stutement of profit and loss.

All other notes to the financial statements mainly include amounts for continuing operations, unless otherwise mentioned.

) Bquity share capial
Equity shares are classified as equity.

Tncremental costs directly attributeble to the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the procesds,

mf Trade and ether poyables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services pravided fo the Company prior to the end of the financinl yecar which arc unpaid. The amounts
are unsecured and are vsually paid within 30 days of recognition. Trade and other payables are presented as current liabilities unless payment is not due
within 12 months after the reporting period. They are recognised initially at their fair value and subsequendy measured at amortised cost using the effective

interest method,

a}  Provisions aad contingont labititics

Pravisions : :

A provision is recogtized when the Company has a present legal or a constructive obligation as & result of past event and it is probable that an outflow of
respurces will be required 10 settle the obdigation, in respect of which a reliable esiimate can be made. ‘Provisions are recognised for logal claims and

setvice wammanties. Provisions are not recogmised for future operating losses.

Where there are 2 number of similar obligations, the hkelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by considering the class of
obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an owtflow with respect 1o any one item included in the same class of ohligations
may be small. .

Provisions are measured 4t the present value of management’s hest estimate of the expendifure required fo settle the present cbligation at the end of the
teporting period. ‘Lhe discount rate used to determine the present value is the pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
maoney and the risks specific to the liability, The increase in provision due to the passage of time is recopnised as on interest expense.

These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates. In respect of losses that are coverad by insurance, such
losses are recognised as an expense when there is clear evidence or determination or probability that any portion of the loss is not expected fo be setled
through insurunee or other forms of recovery.

Asset Retivement Obligations (ARO) :

ARD are recognised for those operating lease arrangements where the Company has an abligation at the end of the lease period to restore the leased

© premises in 2 condition similar to inception of lease. ARO are provided at the present value of expected costs to settle the obligation and ere recognised as
part of the cost of that particular asset and amortised or depreciated in the same manner as the asset 10 which it pertains. The estimated future costs of

. decommissioning are reviewed anaually and any chanpes in the estimated future costs or in the discount rats applied are adjusted from the cost of the asset.

Cantingent liabilitiey . ’ .
Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possibie obligation arising from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed ouly by the
OCCUTENce of nonh-occurrence of one or more uncertain fiture events not wholly within the control of the Company or a present obligation that arises From
past events where it is either rot probable that an outfiow of resources will be required to settle, or 2 reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made.

Contingent liabilities recognised in a business combination .
A contingent liability recognised in a business combination is initéally measured af fis fair value. Subsequendy, it is measured at the higher of the amount
that would be recognised in accordance with the requirements for provisions above or the amount initialty Tecognised less, when sppropriate, cumulative

" amortisation recognised in accordance with the requirements for revenue recognition.

a) Government graots _
Grants from the Govemment are recognised at their fair value where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be received, and the Company will

comply with all attached conditions.

Govemment grants relating to income or expenditure Jexpenses are deferred and recognised in the profit or loss over the period necessery to match them
with the costs that they are intended to compensate. ;

Government grants relating to the puchase of property, plant and equipment are included in non-current liabilitics as deferred income and recagnised on a
straight-line basis over the expected lives of related assets and presented within other income.

5 Hoevesipe recognition - .
Revenue is measured at the fair valve of consideration recéfved or receivable. Amounts recopnised as revenue are pet of returns, trade allowances,
discounts, rebates, deductions by customers, goods and services tax and amounts collected on behalf of third parties. :

Al the inception of the new contractual arrangement with the customer, the Company identifies the performance obligélions inherent in the agreement. The
-terms of the contracts are such that the services to be rendered represent & series of services that are substantially the same with the same patiern of the

{ransfer o the customer. :
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Reconeiliation of deferred tax assels {liabilities), net:

ADIS Enterprises Private Limited

Defined Deduetions in | Accruals and | Allowance for Total
. benefit respect of others expected
. obligations |certain benefits credit Loss
Particnlars
under the
Inceme Tax Act,
1961
As af April 1, 2020 177 1,638 - - 1,815
Tax income / (expense) during the period recognised in o (502) ~ 155 {105)
prefit or loss
Tax income / (expense} during the period recognised in 230 . _ i 330
OCE
As at Mareh 31, 2021 . 449 1,136 - 355 1,940
Tax income f (e;pense} during the period recognised in 120 (748) : 3 440 (176)
profit or loss :
. Tax income / (expense) during the perfod recognised in 140 ) ) _ 140
OC1
As at March 31, 2022 709 338 3 804 1,904
{ncome tax assets:
Particulars March 31,2022 | March 31, 2021
Opening balance 1,550 501
Taxes paid 995 1,049
Refund received (735) -
Current tax payable for the year “(21) -
Income tax assels 1,789 1,550

The Company offsets tax assets and Habilities if and nniy 1f it has a legally enforceable right to set off cornent tax assels and current tax labilities and the
deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same tax anthority.

&, Other Assets
Particulars March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021
Other non-cwirrenf assets - ' -
Other ecurrent assets
Prepaid expensag 110 -
Other advances 32 50
Other current assets - 41
other corrent asscts 142 21
Total ether assets 142 91

7. lrwmml;ies

|Particalars March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021
Uniforms ) 70 .
Total inventories af the Iower of cost and net realisable value h 79 -

8, Trade rcmi'_a'abké

March 31, 2021

Particularsg “ March 31, 2022
Trade receivables 8,696 8.907
Less: Allnwance for expected credit loss 3,196 1,410
Total trade receivables 5,500 497
Break-up of security details;
| Particmlars March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021
Secured, considered poed - R
Unsecured, considered good §,696 8,507
Total 8,696 5,907

companies respactwe]y in which any director is a parter, a director or a member, except as disclosed in note 28,

24
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Refer Note 29 for the Company”s policy regarding impairment allowance on trade receivables and Company's credit risk management prooessm
For cutstanding balances, terms and conditions relating to refated party receivables refer note 28.

k " . The movement in allowanees for expected credit loss is as foliows:
5 Particulars : . March 31,2022 | March 31, 2021
Opening balance . 1,410 81
Additions ' : 1,786 1.410
Write off {net of recovery) ] - (81)
Closing balance 3,196 1,410
The ageing schedule for outsianding trade receivables fiom the due date is given below:
Year ended March 31, 2022
Particulars Cuistanding for following periods from due date Total
Not Due { Less than {6 months -| 1-2 years | 2-3 years [ More than
6 months | 1 year 3 vears
- - (1) Undispuied trade receivabies — considered good 3,993 1,337 954 2310 102 - 8,696
(ii) Dispoted trade receivables considered good - - - . - - -
- o Year ended March 31, 2021
Particelars Outstanding for following periods from due date Total
Not Due| Less than (6 months -| 1.2 years | 2-3 years | More than
) 6 months 1 vear . 3 vears
| (i) Undisputed trade receivables — considered good 4413 2,649 1,207 638 - - 8,907
(ii) Disputed trade receivables considered good - - - - - - -
9. Cash and bank baixrges
Cash and cash equivalents .
Particulars | March 31,2022 | March 31, 2021
Balances with banks:
— On current accounis 491 131
- Bank deposits with original maturity of three months or less 3,517 -
Total ' C 4,008 13
. Bank balanees lying in vatfous current acoounts bear no interest,
| There are no repatriation restrictions with regard fo cash and cash equivalents as at the end of reporting period and pricr periods.
16 Equity Share capidal
Authorized share eapital ) )
Particulars {Equify shares of INR 10 each) Nos. INR thousand |
‘I As at April 1, 2020 _ _ 10,000 100
Increasef(decrease) during the year ) - -
As at March 31, 2021 . : : 10,000 140
IncreaseX(decrease) during the year - -
|As at March 31, 2022 ' _ 10,000 100
Issued, subseribed and paid ap equity capital
Particulars (Equity shares of INR 10 each) Nos. INR thousand
As at April 1, 2020 . . 13,808 o 160
Increasef{decrease} during the year - ’ -
i As at March 31, 2021 ) 10,000 100
Increasef{decrease) during the year o - -
As af March 31, 2022 10,000 | 100
N Shares keld by holding / ultimate holding Company / and/or their subsidiariesfassociates
Out of the equity shares issued by the Company, shares held by its holding company are as below:
) o March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021
.I-Inlding Company . . Nas Nos
Dusters ¥ otal-Solutions Services Private Lintited i 10000 10,000
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Termsfrights attached to equity shares

The Company has only one elass of equity shares having par value of INR 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share and to
participate in dividends i proportion to the number of and amounts paid on the shares held. The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees.

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive the remaining assets of the Cotnpany, after disteibution of
all preferenttal amoumts. The distribution wilt be in propertion to the numaber of equity shares held by the shareholders,

Datails of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021

"|Nante of the shareholder o PR
MNos, % holding in the Nos. % Lolding in the

clasy class
Dusters Total Solutions Services Private Limited 10,000 104.00% 10,000 100.00%

No equity shares were issued as bonus, for consideration other than cash or bought back during the period of five years immediately preceding the

reporting date,
1k, Other equity
Particulais March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021
Reserves aud surplus
Retained earnings 8,542 6,960
Total reserves and surplus {(A) 8,542 6,960
Other reserves )
E<uity contritution by parent 20 10
Total other reserves (B) 20 10
Total other equity (A+B) ‘B, 562 6,970
Retained earnings
Particalars Marchk 31,2022 | March 31, 2021
Balance at the beginnlng of year T 6960 7,271
Net Profit / (loss) for the year ] £,998 375
Items of other compiehensive income recognised directly in retained earnings
- Remessurements of post-cmployment benefft plans directly in retained earnings 4186) (686)
Balance ai the end of year 8,542 6,960

Equity contribution by parent

March 31, 2021 |

Particulars March 31, 2022
Balance af the beginming of year 1o 10
Fair value adjustment of corporate gmrantee provided by parent 10 -
Balance at the end of year ' 20 10

Nature and purpose of Reserves

- Retained earnings

Retained eamings represent the amouns of accumulated earmings of the Company and re-measurement differences on defined benefit plans.

12 Trade payahles
Particulars March 31, 2022 [ March 31, 2021
Nen-curreat - -
Cuorrent
Trade payables
-total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises{MSME) 7 31
-total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises g2 880
Total curreat trade payables . 99 11
Total ’ 99 911

- The tenms and conditions of the above financial liabilities are as follgws:

" a. Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normally seifled on credit terms ranging from 30-90 days which vary by verdor and type of service.

‘b For outstanding balances, terms and conditions with related parties, refer to note 28.

-
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The ageing schedule for outstanding trade payables from due date is given below:

Year ended March 31, 2022
Particulars Qutstanding for following periads from dac date Total
Not due <1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3
: i vears
()MSME 31 - - - - 31
(ii)Others 349 520 11 - - 880
Year ended March 31, 2021
Particulars Ouistanding for following periods from duc date Total
Not due <1 year 1-2 yvears 2-3 years Mare than 3
years
(i)MSME 7 _ . R _ -
(i)Others 33 60 - - - ”

Based on the information available with the Company, the amount payable to creditors who have been identified as “suppliers™ within the meaning of

“Micro, Small and Medivr Enterprises Development (MSMED) Act, 2006™ is as below:

Particulars

" March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

Principal amount and the interest [INR Nil (March 31, 2021 ~-Nil)] due thereon

2

31

Amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the MSMED Act, 2006, along with
the amounts of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting
year

Amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been
paid but beyend the appointed day during the year) bul withoul adding the interest specified under
MSMED Act, 2006 '

Amount of interest acerved and remaining unpaid at the end of cach accounting year

|Amount of further interest remazining due und puyable gven in- (e suoceeding years, until such date
when the intcrost ducs as above are acimally paid to the small enterprise for the puposs of|
disallowance as a deductible expenditurs under section 23 of the MSMED Act, 2006

13, Other financlsh Eabilities

March 31, 2022

Partleulars March 31, 2021
Non-eurrent - -
Current
Employee benefits payable 4,062 3,201
Other payables and accruals* 754 665
Total other eurrent financial liabilities 4,821 3,866
_| Total other financial Iiabilities 4,821 3,866
* Include unbilled dues having ageing of less than one year
4. Financial insframents by category
ol " "Mareh 31,2022 March 31, 2021
Particulars ¥VIPL VIO Cl c:::udisgd FVIPL FVIOCT i::oﬂised
Financial asseis: . i
Trudde receivables . . - 5,500 - - 7,497
Cash and cash equivalents - - 4,008 - - 131
Other financial assets - ’ - 3610 - - 2,783
Total finanelal asscts  ° -] . 13,115 - - 10,411
|Finuneial Habililies: '
Trade payables - B 99 - - 911
Ocher financial liabilitics - - 4,821 - - 3,866
" {Tatal financial liabilities - - 4920 - - 4,777
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Confract balances: :
The following table provides information abowr unbilled revenue from contract with castomers

ADIS Enterprises Private Limited

Particolars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Opening balance 2,783 631

Transfers from unbilled revenue recopnised at the beginning of the year to receivables {2,783) {631)

Increase due to revenue recognised durinﬁ the year, excluding amounts billed during the year 3,599 2,783

Closing balance 3,599 2,783
18, Oiher income

Particulars March 31,2022 | March 31, 2021

Interest income 113

Total 113 -
12, Cost uf materials eonanped

Particolars March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2621

Purchases of chemicals, consumables, and others - ' 117

Uniforms and related inventories - 91

Total - 208
26 Changes in inventory of stock-in-trada

Particulars March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021

Inventory at the end of the year 79 -

Changes in imventory of stock-in-frade - (increase)/decrease {79) -
21 Twmployee heaefits

ap  Employee costs induide:

Particulars March 31,2022 | March 31, 2021

Szlaries, wages and bonus 35,210 28,832
-|Contribution te provident and other funds 4,062 3,220

Gratuity expense 240 13

Leave compensation 979 676

Staff welfare expenses v 1 72

Total 40,502 32,813

" k) Defined contributicn plns
The Cotnpany has certain defined contribution plans.

Contributions are made tw provident fimd for employess at the rate of 12% of the salary (subject to & limit of INK £5,000 salary per month) as per -
regulations. The contributions are made to a stawtory provident fund administered by the Government. The obligation of the Compatty is limited to the
amount contributed and it has no further contractual or constructive obligations in this regard. )

Further, contributions are made in respect of Employees” State Insurance Scheme, for specified employees, at the rate of 3.25% of the gross pay as per
regulations. The contributions are towards medical benefits provided by the Government to the employees, The contributions are made to employees’ state
insurance authorities administered by the Government. The obligation of the Company is limited to the smount contributed and it has no further contractuat
or constructive obligations in this regard.

Contributions to provident fund and employess” state insurance scheme are recngnized as an expense as they become payable which coincides with the
petiod during which relevant employee services are reczived. Prepaid contributions ars recognized as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or & reductinn
in the future payments is available.

FParticulars March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021

Expense recognised during the period towards defined contribution plans : 4,062 3,220

€}  Befined bepefiis plans
In accordance with the Payment of Geatuity Act, 1972, the Company. provides for a lump sum payment to eligible employees, at retirement or termination
of employment based on the last drawn salary, years of employment with the Company subject to completion of five years of service and other conditions.
The gratuity plan is a partiy funded plan and the Company makes contributions {0 a fund administeted and operated by a reputed jnsrance company. The
Company does not fully fund the liability and maintains a target level of funding to be maintsined dver a period of fime based on estimations of expected

pratuity payments.
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ADIS Enterprises Private Limited

The following tables summarises the components of net benefit expense recognised in the statement of profit or loss and the funded status and amounts

recognised in the balance sheet for the respective plans:

Expenditure to be recognized doring the year:

Particulars March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021
Current service cost 220 19
Interest cost 20 (6)
Total amount recognised in profit or foss 240 13 |
Remeasurcments
Return on plan asscts, exchuding amounts included in interest income [E)] 4
lnss/{gain) from changes in financial assunptions (92) 24
loss/{(gain} from changes in demographic assumptions 356 -
Experience loss / (gain) 295 RSB
Total loss / (gain) recognised in other comprehensive income 556 o
Change in present value of defined benefit obligation s summarized below:
Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of Defined Benefit Obligation March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2031
Pefined benefit obligation at the beginning of year 1,276 43
Current service cost 220 18 1
Pagt service cost - -
Interest cost 39 1
Remeasurements 559 912
Benefits paid - 301
Defined benefit obligation at the end of year ' 2,094 1276
Recanciliation of fair value of plan assets:
Reconciliation of opening and dlosing balances of fair value of plan gssets March 31, 2022 { March 31, 2021
Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the year 409 104
Interest income 19 7
Remeasurements 3 {4
Coniribution by employer - I
Benefits paid - 301
Fair value of plan assets at the closing of the year 431 403
Reconciltation of faiv valee of Assets and Obligations:
Reconcilation of fair value of assets and obligatians March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021
| Pair value of plan assets 431 409
Present value of pbligation (2,094} {1,276)
Asset / (liability) recognized in balanee Sheet .(1,663) (867)

The present vafue of defined benefit obligation relates to active employees only,

The principal assumptions used in detormining eratuity and post-venployment beneiit obligutions for the Company s plans are shown below:

‘Principal Assumptions; .
Principzl actuarial assamptions March 31,2022 | Mareh 31, 2021
Discount rate 5.30% 4.60%
Future salary increase 5.00% £.00%
Attrition rate .
- Age from 21-30 years A2 001%% 71.00%
- 31-40 © 4200% 71.00%
|- "4t-50 40.00% 71.00%
- 51 & above 43.00% 71.00%|
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A quantitative sensitivily analysis for significant assumption is as shown below:

Assumptions March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021
Discount rate

0.5% increase -1.23% -0.74%
0.5% decrease 1.27% 0.75%
Fufure salary increases

0.5% increase 1.26% 0.74%
0.5% decrease -1.24% -0.73%

The above sensitivity analysis are based on a change in assumption while holding all other assumptions constant. In practice, this is unlikely to occur, and
changes in some of the assumptions may be correlated, When calculating the sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to significant actuarial
assumptions, the same method (present value of the defined benefit obligation caleulated with the projected credit unit method at the end of the reporting
period) has heen applied as when calculating the defined benefit ligbility recognised in the halanee sheet.

The methods and types of assumptions uszd in preparing the _sensitiﬁ'ty analysis did not change compared to the previous year,

Risk Exposure
Through its defined benefit plans, the Company is exposed to & number of risks, the most significant of which are market volatility, changes in inflation,
changes in interest rates, rising longevity, changing cconomic environment and regulatory changes,

The Company has selected a suitable insurer to manage the finds in such a manner as to ensure that the investment positions are managed with an asset-
liability matching framework that has been developed to achieve invesiments which are in line with the obligations under the employee benefit plans.
Within this framework, the asset-liability matching objective is to match assets 1o the obligations by investing in secnrities to match the benefit payments as
they fall due.

The insurer, on behalf of the Company, actively monitors how the duration and the expected yield of the investments are matching the expected cash
ouiflows arising from employee benefit obligations. The Company has not changed the processes used fo manage its risks from previous periods.

Tnvesthients are well diversified, such that fatlure of any single investment should not have a material impact on the overall tevel of assets.

Defined benefic liability and employer ¢contributions

The weighted average duration of the post-eraployment bemefit plan obligations and expected maturity analysis of undiscounted gratuity benefits is as

follows:
Particolars March 31,2022 | March 31, 2021
The weighted average duration of the post-employment benefit plan obligations (in years) 2.50 1.49
Expected Contribution to the fund dwing the next year 100 339
Maturity profile: March 31,2022 | March 31, 2021
Lessthan a year 824 839
Eetween 1-2 years 527 340
Between 2-5 years 195 183
Over 5 Years 2565 7
Total 2,411 1,369

&)  Parliament has gpproved the Code on Wages, 2019 and the Code on Social Security, 2020 which govern, and are likely o impact, the contributions
. by the Company towards certain employee benefits, The Code has been published in the Gazefte of India. The effective date of these Codes has not yet
been notified and the Company will assess the impact of these codes as and when they come into effect and will provide for the appropriate impact in its

financial statements in the period in which, the Code becomes effective.

22. Fingnee costs

(This space s baen lefi intentionally blayk)
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Parficulars March 31,2022 | March 31, 2021
Interest Expense 33 189
Total 33 189
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3. Other expenses

Particulars March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021
Other Direct Operating Cost 351 37
Salling expenses 49 2]
Administrative expenses:
-Travelling and conveyance a3 105
-Postage and telephone 24 2
-Statipnary and printing 10 1
-Rent* 98 109
-Rates & taxes - 3
-Rapairs and maintenance:

‘- Machinery 58 20

-- Others 13 1
-Bank charges - 1
-Payments to andicors (Refer datails below) 47 65
-Lepal and professional fees 219 1,293
-Allowanece for expected credit loss 1,786 1,410
«Other administration and general expensas 2,114 2,283
Total . 5,063 5,961

* Rent expenses pertained fo short-term leases and low valus assets.

Payment {0 Avuditors
Particulars March 31,2022 | March 31, 2021
As anditor:

Statutory Audit fee 40 40

Other services (certification fees) 7 25

Total payment to anditors 47 65
24, Earnings pey share (EPS)

A reconcilialion of profit for the year and equity shares used in the computation of basic and diluted earings per equity share is set out below:
Particulars ) March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021
Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company :

Profit attritutable to equity holders of the Company for basic earnings 1,998 375
Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company adjnsted for the effect of dilution 1,998 3758
Weighted average number of aquity shares for basic EPS (Numbers) 10,000 10,000
Effect of dilution: - .
Weighted average number of equity shares adjusted for the effect of dilution 10,000 10,000
Nominal value of equity shares (INR) 11] 10
Earnings pet share
|- Basic (INR) 199.80 37.50
|- Diluted (INR) 199.30 37.50

25 Comsmitments and condingencies
{a) Capital commitment

The estimated amount of confracts remaining, 10 he execited ne capital accomnt (net of canital advence) and not prwided is given below:

{Particulars

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

" fadvances) and not provided for

" |Estimated amownt of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account (mei of capital
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{b} Coatingent liabilides

March 31, 2022
- Litigation matcers with respect indirect taxes - -

Particulars March 31, 2021

Other money for which the Company is contingently liable ' - -
Total -

The Company records a liahility when it is both probable that a loss has been incurred and the amount can be reasanably estimated. Significant judgment i
required to determine both probability and ¢he estimated amount. The Company reviews these provisions periodically and adjusts these provisions accordingly
10 reflect the impact of negotistions, settlements, eulings, advice of legal counsel, and updated information. The Company believes that the amount or estimable
range of reasonably possible loss, will not, either individualy or in the aggregate, have a material adverse effect on ifs business, financial posmon resulis of the
Comnipany, or cash flows with respect to loss contingencies for legal and other contingencies as at March 31, 2022,

Dispated claims against the Company, including claims raised by the tax authorities and which are pending in appeal /court and for which no reliable

estitate can be made of the amowunt of the obligation, are not provlded tor n the accounts. However, the present obligation, if any, as a result of past events
with a possibility of autflow of resources, when reliably estimable, is recognized in the accownts as'an expense as and when such obligation crystailises,

2 Lvents ocourring after the Batanee Steel date
There were no other significant events that accurred after the balance sheet date.

17. Operating sepmeny

Particulars March 31,2022 | March 31, 2021
Revemue from Facility management 47,794 39,651
EBITDA from Facility management 2,115 669

The Company is required to disclose segment mtbmumon based on the ‘management approach’ as dcﬁned in Tnd AS 108- Operating Segmemis, which in
how the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) evaluates the Company’s performance and allocates resources based on the analysis of the various
performarice indicators. In the case of the Compzmy, the CODM reviews the results of the Company a5 a whole as the Company is primarily engaged i the
business of rendering facility management services in India. Accordingly, the Company is a single CGU, hence single segment Company, The mformanon
as required under Ind AS 108 is available directly from the financial stalemcnts, hence no separate disclosures have been made.

28, Tefated pady trensacticns

Names of related parties

Ultimate Holding company - SIS Limited (formery known as Securittes and Intelligence Services (India) Limited)
Holding company - Duslat:rs Total Solutions Private Limited

Enterbrises owncd or significantly
influenced by group of individuals or

Key Meuagement Personnel and thelr relatives who bhave conirol or

Fellow subsidiaries their relatives

significant Influence over the
Company
{- SIS Business Support Services and Solutions Pvt. Ltd |- Brajesh Kumar - Director - ADIS Enterprises®

- Bikash Mishra - Director (appointed - Adis Infrastructure Private Limited*
we.l April 01, 2021)

- NGS Sanjeev Kumar - Director
(appointed we.f May 10, 2021)

* Considered retated parties tilt Match 0L, 2021

(This space has been intemtionally left blank)
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% Financial risk maoasgement

The Company’s principal financial liabilities, cemprise loans and borrowings, trade and other payables, and financial guarantes contracts, The main
purpose: of these financial liabilities is to finance the Company’s operations and to provide guarantees t¢ support the financing of the operations of its
subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates. The Company’s principal financial assets include irade and other receivables, cash and cash eguivalents that
derive directly from its operations, inans, security and other deposits.

The Company’s operations expose it to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Compastys focus is to reduce volatility in financial statesnents while
maintaining balance between providing predictability in the Company’s business plan along with reasonable participation in market movement. It is the
Company’s policy that no trading in derivatives for speculative purposes may be undertaken.

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Markel risk
mainly comprises currency risk and interest rate risk, Fingneial instruments affected by market visk include loans and borrowings, loans and deposits given,
FVTOCI investments and derivative financial insttuments,

Fareign currency risk S :

Foreign currency risk is the risk thel the fair value or future cash fows-of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates which
arises from assets and liabilities denominated in currencies other than the functional currency of the respective entities and foreign currency revenue and
cash flows. The Compamy’s exposure te the risk of changes in foreign currency exchange rates relates primarily ta the Compeany’s operating activities
{when revenoe or expense is denominated in a foreign currency) and the Company’s net investments in foreign subsidiaries. The Company has limiled
foreign currency transactions and has limited exposure o foreign currency assets and liabilities resubting in ¢he foreign currency risk being fow. :
The exchange rate between the Indian Rupes and foreign currencies has fluctuated in recent years and may continue to do so in the fuure. Consequently,
the results of the Company's vperations may be affected as the Indian Rupee appreciates/depreciates against these currencies.

There are ne foreipn currency denominated financial assets and financial Kabilities as at March 31, 2022 end March 31, 2021.

Interest rate risk g
Interest rate risk primarily arises from floating rate borrowing, including various revolving and other lines of credit. Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair

value or fitime cash flows of a financial instrement will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.
The Company does not have long-term botrowing at the end of the reporting period and therefore has no exposure to interest rate changes.

The Company’s fixed fate berrowings are earried at amortised cost. They are therefore not subject to interest rate risk as defined in Ind-AS 107, since
neither the carrying amount nor the fuiure cash flows will uctuate because of a change in market interest rates.

Credit risk
Credit risk atises from the possibility that counterparties may not be able to settle their abligations as agreed resulting in = financial loss. The primary

exposure to craedit rigk arises from Trade receivables and Unbilled revenue. These are unsecured and are managed by the Cempany through & system of
periodically assessing the financial reliability of customers, taking into account the financial condition, current economic trends, and analysis of historical
bad debts and ageing of acoounts receivables, Three customers acoounted for more than 10% of the accounts receivable as of March 31, 2022 and two
customners accounted for more than 10% of revenues for the year ended March 31, 2022, There is no significant concentration of credit risk. The Company
uses the ECL method 1o assess the loss aflowance for Trade weceivables and Unbilled revenue taking inta account primarify the historical trends and
analysis of bad debts. The company does not expect any credit risk or impairmen in respect of amounts lent to ils subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures, if any. .

The credit risk for financtal assets other than bank balances and trade receivables are considered low.

Significant estimates and judgements
Impzirment of financial assets :
The impairment provision for financial assets disclosed above are based on assomplions abeut risk of default and expected foss rates. The Company uses

judgement in maldng these assumptions and selzcting the inpots to the impairment calculation, based on the Company's past history and existing market
conditions. The company estimates loss arising on trade receivables as a percentage of sales based on past trends and such [oss is directly debited o
revenue instead of creating a provision for impairment of receivables,

Financial instruments and cash deposits
Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by the Company's treasury depariment in accordance with the Company’'s
policy. Sueplus tunds are invested in bank fixed deposits or used to temporarily reduce the balence of cesh eredii neccounts to optimize interest costs,

Liquidity risk . )

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting its obligations associated with financial liabilities, The Company

consistently generates sufficient cash flows from operations and has access to multiple sources of funding to meet its financial ebligations and maintain
adequate liquidity for use. ' :

The Company”s objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of bank overdrafts, bank loans, debentures,
shareholder equity, and finance leases, ' ' '

The Company has assessed the eoncentration of risk with respect 1o refinancing its debt and concluded it to be tow. The Company has acoess to & sufficient
variety of sources of funding and significant portion of shost-term debt maturing within 12 months can be rolled over with existing lenders. The Company
behieves that 1t has sufficient working capital and cash accruals to meet its business requirements and other obligations.

The table below summarizes the maturity profile of the Company's financial liabilities based or contractual vndiscounted payments,

Year ended March 31, 2022
{Puriicalwrs : On demand Less than 3§ . Ste 12 L lo5 years 3 yeary Total
] months months i
Other financial liakilities - 4,821 - : - - 4,821
Trade payables - : g9 - - - 99
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Fair values of assets and labilities cerried at amortized costs are as follows:

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Particalars Fzir vzloe Fair value
® Carrying velue Carrylng value
‘ Level 2 inputs Level 2 inputs
Financial assets: -
Trade receivables . 5,500 5,500 7497 7.407
Cash and cash equivalents 4,008 4,008 131 13
Other finaneial assets 3,610 3,610 2,783 2,783
Total financial assets : 13,1138 13,118 10,411 10,411
| Financial liabilities:
Trade payables 99’ 9% 911 o1t
Other financial liabilities 4,821 ) 4,821 3,866 3,866
Total financial liabilitles 4,920 ' 4,920 4,777 4,777
~ The Company has assessed that the fair value of cash and short-term deposits, trade receivables, capital creditors, trade payables, bank overdrafts and other
current liabilitics approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturitics of these instruments, ) )
Valunation processes
. The finance department of the Parent includes the team that performs the valuations of financial assets and linbilities required for financial repotting

purposes, including level 3 fair values, The tzam reports -directly fo the chief financial officer (CFO). Discussions of valuztion processes and resulis are
held between the CFO and (e valuation team at least once ¢very 3 months, in line with the Company’s quarlacr]y reporting petiod. External valuer s
assistance is akso taken for valuation purposes where required

The main level 3 inputs used by the Company are derived and evahuated as follaws: '
= Discoums rate are determined wsing a capital asset pricing model to caleulate 1 pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessmenis of the time value of

money and the risk specific to the asset.
+  Risk adjustments specific to the counter parties (including assumnptions about credit default fates) are derived from credit risk grading determined by
. the Company’s inlernal credit management group. )
»  Volatility used for option pricing model is based on higtorical volatility of comparsble companiss.
= Contingent consideration — estimated based on expected cash outflows arising from the forecasted sales and the entitics; knowledge of the business and
how the current econemic environment is likely to impact it.

15, Dther Liabilities
{Particulars : ‘March 31,2022 | March 31, 2021

Qther non-current labllities : ' - -

|Other current liabilities

N Statutory dues payable 1,521 1,152
| Total other current lishilities ) 1,521 . 1,152
. {Total ather Habilitics 1,521 1,152
16, Provishons
[particutars March 31, 2022 - March 31,2021
Provision for employee benefits (refer nofe 21) . Non-current Curreng Nan-girrent Current|-
| Gratuity o : 1,269 394 36 | st
| Leave ligbiities _ - 266 - 126
Total B 1,269 660 : 436 557

" 17, Revenus from Operations
Particulars . : ) . Mareh 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021

Rendering of services

Facility man.sgemeut services

=~ From Housekeeping, Cleaning, Facility operation & management services 47,794 30,651

Revenue from operafions : 47,794 39,651

The Company s revenue is foas rendering of services towards housekeeping, cleaning, fasility operation & management seyvices and bas been recognized
over the period of time from the contracts with customers, located in Indian geography.
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‘Year ended March 31, 2021

Purticalars On demand Less than 3 31012 1 te 5 years =5 years Tatal
months maonihs

Other Tinancial liabilities - 3,866 . - - 3,866

Trade payables - 911 - - - 931

As a matter of policy, the Company does not carry out any hedping activities,
There have been no default in servicing borrowings and/ or breaches in loan covenants.

Reconciliation of liabilities whese eash flow movements are disclosed as part of financing activities in the staterent of cash flows:

3

A, Additional capital disclosures

For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued equity capitaf, share premium, all other equity reserves atiributable to the
equity holders of the Company. The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to maximise shareholder value and suppart its strategies
and cperating requirements. The key objective of the Company’s capital management is fo ensure that it maintains a stable capital stmcture with a focus on
total equity (o uphold investor, creditor, and customer confidence and o ensuee fumre development of its business. The Company determines the capital
requirement based on annual operating plans end leng-term and other strategic investment plans. The funding requirements for the Company’s
operations are generally met thrgugh operating cash flows generated and supplemented by long-term and working czpital borrowings from banks,

The Company’s chjectives when managing capital are to:

a) safeguard its ability 1o continue as a going concem, so that it can continue to provide retumns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, and
b) Maintain an optimal capital structure 10 optimise the cost of capital.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the requirements of the financial
covenants 10 which it is subject. To maintzin or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders or issue new shares. The Company moniters capital using a ratio, which is Net Debt divided by EBITDA. The Company defines Net Debt as
borrowings less cash and cash aqulvalents, excluding discontinved operations, but incliding bank balances and deposits irrespective of their duration /
matusity,

Particulars March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 9), other bank balances and deposits (including margin monay) {4,008) (131)
Net Debt ' (4,008) (131
ERITDA 2,115 669
Net debt to EBTTDA ratio {1.90) (0.20)

In order to achieve this overal objective, the Company’s capitdl management, amongst other things, aims o ensure that it simulianeously meets financial
covenanis attached fo its borrowings. Breaches in meeting the financial covenants would permit the bank to immediately call loans and botrowings. There
have been no breaches in the financial covenants of any bom]mng in the current period.

B. Financizl rating

) Ratio Nomerator Denominator March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2023
. Current ratio Current asset Cuerent liahilities . 1.94 1.62
| Debe-equity matio Total debt Sharcholders' equity (0.06) 0.00
| Return on equity ratia Net profits after taxes Average sharcholders' equity 23.04% 532%
Trade receivables turnover ratic | Revenoe from operations Average trade receivables 7.35 C4.32
Met cupital turnover ratio Bevenue from operations Woikbilg capital 932 8.73
Net profit ratic Net profits after taxes Revenue from operations . 4.18% 0.95%
Keturn on capital employed Earning befor interest and taxes | Capital employed ** 36.46% 8.39%

*Debt service = Interest expense + current maturities of long-term debt
** Capilal employed = Total equily + Net debt
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] - All it INR thousonds except shore dato
y Dividends

The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian rapees. According to the Companies Act, 2013 any dividend should be declared out of accumulated

distributable profits. A’ Company may, before the declaration of any dividend, transfer a percentage of its profits for fhat financial year as it may consider
appropriate to the reserves.

The Cbmpany has not declared or paid any dividend d’_u[ing'th:é year ended March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021,

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors ﬁ

As per our report of even date

For .&i‘ah csh P, & Co.
© Chartersd Accountauts

ééh P, Ladwa

Place: New Delhi
Date: April 29, 2022

Bikath Mishra
{ - Director
(DIN 07833562) (DIN: 07900700)
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